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28,334 18,402 16,679 30,780 45,619
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7,411 1,006 1,313 257 707
11,610 (1,672) 2,752 3,902 (2,722)
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65,584.07 8,902.65 11,619.47 2,274.34 6,256.64
102,743.36 (14,796.46) 24,353.98 34,530.97 (24,088.50)
1.51 1.30 1.54 1.96 1.58
20.02 2.56 3.53 0.63 1.72
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38,332 (278,974) (222,952) (284,146) (254,641)
600 557 241 444 380
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C ) 454 113,000
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45,619 30,780
(71,086) (36,259)
(25,467) (5,479)

(515) (660)
(64) (115)
188,187 62,468
(163,569) (54,751)
3,852 301
2,424 1,764
(267) (226)
(1,191) (1,184)
(1,458) (1,410)
966 354
(259) 97)
707 257
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2024 31 2023 31
5,13 55,186 356,248
5,13,14 32,816 21,287
88,002 377,535
5,13,23,25 2,216,214 1,571,815
5,13,14 124,078 81,661
5,13,15 380 444
12 114 78
5,13,16 96,054 141,717
2,436,840 1,795,715
2,524,842 2,173,250
17,26 8,366 7,433
26 1,321 1,321
26 11,019 15,497
18 19,079 18,256
39,785 42,507
13,19 92,979 120,940
13,20 522,730 552,001
13,14 115,792 124,359
12 3,133 4,361
734,634 801,661
13 1,336,509 871,085
13,19 6,900 1,219
13,20 278,586 361,940
13,14 35,568 85,302
5,13,21 92,860 9,536
1,750,423 1,329,082
2,485,057 2,130,743
2,524,842 2,173,250
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7,433 1,321 14,528 969 18,256 42,507
- - - - 707 707

- - (3,545) - 116 (3,429)

- - (3,545) - 823 @,722)
933 - - (933) - -
8,366 1,321 10,983 36 19,079 39,785
6,991 1,321 11,019 1,411 17,863 38,605
- - - - 257 257
- - 3,509 - 136 3,645
- - 3,509 - 393 3,902
442 - - (442) - -
7,433 1,321 14,528 969 18,256 42,507

116
3,545
136 3,509
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707 257
114,958 (41,216)
80 1,054
13 (343,337) 233,368
465,424 83,959
13,14 (53,946) 120,233
13,14 (58,301) (39,769)
16 45,627 (19,399)
21 83,324 (54,155)
254,536 284,332
13,20 244,283 183,423
13,19 (22,331) (80,649)
13,20 (476,593) (386,920)
(254,641) (284,146)
(105) 186
41 17
444 241
15 380 444
(70,173) (29,487)
44,828 29,262
12 (307) (116)

46/199



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

2023 2024 31
122,159 (22,331) 51 - 99,879
913,941 (232,310) 119,685 - 801,316
1,036,100 (254,641) 119,736 - 901,195

2022 2023 31
202,573 (80,649) 235 - 122,159
1,162,533 (203,497) (45,095) - 913,941
1,365,106 (284,146) (44,860) - 1,036,100

47/199



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NHI NHI
1096HA
Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1096 HA Amsterdam
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NHI
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2.1
2024 31 EU
IFRS
2.2
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2.3
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IAS 12
2023
EU
1AS IFRS
1AS
1AS
2023
2022 31 EU
1AS
2021 12 1ASB 1AS
2023
2022 31 EU
IAS 12 -
2023 23 IASB (OECD)/G20 (BEPS)
( )
IAS 12 -1AS 12

2023 1 1
EU

12
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2024 31 2023 31
45,602 30,779
14 1
3 -
45,619 30,780

2024 31 2023 31
(221) (223)
(31) (49)
(70,834) (35,987)
(71,086) (36,259)

2024 31 2023 31
(515) (660)
(515) (660)
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D
2)
3)
4)
5
6)

IFRS

IFRS

16

16

156,894

2024

31

380
2,275,776
88,206

431

2,364,362

431

2023

31

444
1,931,584
138,221

367

2,070,249

367

AAA A-
BBB+ BBB-
BB+ BB-
B+ B-
ccc
cC D
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2024 31
ARA / A- 443,550 - - 443,550
BBB+ / BBB- 1,832,226 - - 1,832,226
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cce - - - -
cC/D - - - -
2,275,776 - - 2,275,776
(431) - - (431)
2,275,345 - - 2,275,345
2023 31
ARA / A- 435,470 - - 435,470
BBB+ / BBB- 1,496,114 - - 1,496,114
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cee - - - -
cC/D - - - -
1,931,584 - - 1,931,584
(367) - - (367)
1,931,217 - - 1,931,217
2024 31

204 163 367

107) (163) (270)

62 337 399

(65) - (65)

94 337 431

ECL 64

ECL 64
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219 37 256
(211) (36) 47)
205 163 368
® - ®
3 (€)) &)
204 163 367
ECL 111
4
ECL 115

2024 31 2023 31
157,758 48,726
30,429 13,742
188,187 62,468

23
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2024 31

2023 31

(163,569)

(54,751)

(163,569)

(54,751)

2024 31

2023 31

27 3,743
109

203
98

3,852

301

2022 31
2022 31

3,743

203

2024 31

2023 31

(203)
@GN
@n

(178)
(25)
(23)

(267)

(226)

14
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1
2024 31 2023 31
27 (134) (138)
(906) (904)
* (51) (48)
(29) (30)
27 (70) (61)
@ 3
(1,191) (1,184)
2024 31 2023 31
(22) (20)
(29) (28)
(51) (48)
12
2024 31 2023 31
(255) (248)
1 -
5) 151
(259) N
2024 31 2023 31
966 354
(249) 01)
1 -
11) (6)
(259) N
25.8 26.8
27.32
BEPS

63/199



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

/(

2024 31 2023 31
78 237
307 116
(254) (248)
an D))
114 78
(4,361) (3,292)
1,233 (1,220)
) 151
(3,133) (4,361)
2024 31 2023 31
(3,819) (5,052)
577 598
109 93
(3,133) (4,361)
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2024 31
2,271,400 - - - 2,271,400
- 156,894 - - 156,894
380 - - - 380
- 16 88,206 - - - 88,206
2,359,986 156,894 - - 2,516,880
- - 99,879 - 99,879
- - - 801,316 801,316
- - 1,336,509 - 1,336,509
- 151,360 - - 151,360
- 21 - - 82,522 - 82,522
- 151,360 1,518,910 801,316 2,471,586
2023 31
1,928,063 - - - 1,928,063
- 102,948 - - 102,948
444 - - - 444
- 16 138,221 - - - 138,221
2,066,728 102,948 - - 2,169,676
- - 122,159 - 122,159
- - - 913,941 913,941
- - 871,085 - 871,085
- 209,661 - - 209,661

- 21 - - - - -
- 209,661 993,244 913,941 2,116,846
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2024 31 2023 31
24,618 9,889
15,087 13,534
42,546 24,211
73,440 54,552
1,203 762
156,894 102,948
97,133 109,321
22,497 21,793
14,111 60,305
15,550 13,419
2,069 4,823
151,360 209,661

2024 31 2023 31
2,161,979 1,438,710
411,088 480,733
200,454 342,600
103,500 105,000
132,743 172,548
3,009,764 2,539,591

16 21
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454

27
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5,27

454
113,000

373

oOoOooodn

2024 31 2023 31
88,206 138,221
7,848 3,496
96,054 141,717

1SDA
315,000

2024 31 2023 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
454 454
51,302 51,302
163.065 144.895
8,366 7,433

2024 31 2023 31
8,402 8,402
8,366 7,433
36 969
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20

4,728
14,802

19,579

oOoOooodn

2024 31 2023 31
120,940 161,606
(14,542) (31,430)
(13,470) (9,424)

51 188

92,979 120,940

2024 31 2023 31

1,219 40,967

(7,789) (49,219)

13,470 9,424

- 47

6,900 1,219

2024 31 2023 31
552,001 721,494
179,854 94,350

(145,664) (54,619)
(96,668) (187,285)
11,470 6,387

17,894 (22,701)
4,142 (5,578)
(299) (47)
522,730 552,001

2024 31 2023 31

361,940 441,039
64,429 89,073
(330,929) (332,301)
96,668 187,285

6,401 11,667

79,250 (35,616)

654 799

173 (6)

278,586 361,940
4,778
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24
297,389 350,077
295,548 357,482
21
2024 31 2023 31
5,27 82,522 -
10,338 9,536
92,860 9,536
1SDA
22
2,043,343
923,217
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CRO
CFO EMB
BRC

EMB

BRC

BRC

BoD
BRC
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CRO CFO

CFO BoD EMB
CRO

CRO
Cco
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GRMC

EMB

CRO

CFO

Cco

CRO
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Libor
LIBOR 2021 12 31
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
1BOR
1BOR
1BOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
CRM
CRM
CRM
NHI
NHI  S&P
BBB+
S&P
NHI
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1SDA
2.3 e
/
27
30
(€)) ()
€©)) )
®) ©)

EMB CFO EMB
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58.94 66.25
2024 31
30 90
30 90
- 825,530 1,371,135 31,300 58,099 - 2,286,064
- 825,530 1,371,135 31,300 58,099 - 2,286,064
- 825,530 1,371,135 31,300 58,099 - 2,286,064
2023 31
30 90
30 90
- 708,860 693,771 186,850 363,959 - 1,953,440
- 708,860 693,771 186,850 363,959 - 1,953,440
- 708,860 693,771 186,850 363,959 - 1,953,440
2024 31
30 90
30 90
- 4,208 2,574 3,549 24,330 103,769 138,430
196,033 11,574 19,549 75,845 336,195 312,508 951,704
- 401,023 949,637 - - - 1,350,660
196,033 416,805 971,760 79,394 360,525 416,277 2,440,794
196,033 416,805 971,760 79,394 360,525 416,277 2,440,794
2023 31
30 90
30 90
- 1,174 610 3,089 28,502 130,630 164,005
166,250 41,526 72,877 145,392 363,074 339,636 1,128,755
- 469,245 407,167 - - - 876,412
166,250 511,945 480,654 148,481 391,576 470,266 2,169,172
166,250 511,945 480,654 148,481 391,576 470,266 2,169,172
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2024 31
30 90
30 90
89,285 1,081 2,034 8,594 27,753 42,446 171,193
89,285 1,081 2,034 8,594 27,753 42,446 171,193
- 3,057,782 2,615 12,757 122,545 63,507 3,259,206
- (3,051,609) (2,262) (11,667) (170, 180) (36,698)  (3,272,506)
- 6,083 353 1,090 (47,635) 26,809 (13,300)
89,285 7,164 2,387 9,684 (19,882) 69,255 157,893
2023 31
30 90
30 90
55,996 1,658 2,950 9,990 30,008 48,155 148,757
55,996 1,658 2,950 9,990 30,008 48,155 148,757
- 1,679,516 289,819 16,905 123,782 44,930 2,154,952
- (1,683,989) (289, 395) (21,853) (164,195) (31,074)  (2,190,506)
- 4,473) 424 (4,948) (40,413) 13,856 (35,554)
55,996 (2,815) 3,374 5,042 (10,405) 62,011 113,203
( 22
2024 31
30 90
30 90
- 513,043 563,487 840,881 125,932 - 2,043,343
- 513,043 563,487 840,881 125,932 - 2,043,343
2023 31
30 90
30 90
- 307,336 96,633 519,248 - - 923,217
- 307,336 96,633 519,248 - - 923,217
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ORM EMB GRMC

ORM 1) 2) 3)

ORM

ORM
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19

19

2024 31
55,186 56,077
92,979 89,310

2023 31
356,248 360,168
120,940 115,085
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2024 31 2023 31
156,894 - 143,676 13,218 102,948 - 91,100 11,848
24,618 - 23,967 651 9,889 - 9,153 736
15,087 - 4,214 10,873 13,534 - 3,912 9,622
42,546 - 41,164 1,382 24,211 - 23,066 1,145
73,440 - 73,440 - 54,552 - 54,552 -
1,203 - 891 312 762 - 417 345
156,894 - 143,676 13,218 102,948 - 91,100 11,848

2024 31 2023 31
151,360 - 136,141 15,219 209,661 - 189,234 20,427
97,133 - 96,700 433 109,321 - 108,542 779
22,497 - 9,468 13,029 21,793 - 7,766 14,027
14,111 - 12,547 1,564 60,305 - 54,860 5,445
15,550 - 15,550 - 13,419 - 13,419 -
2,069 - 1,876 193 4,823 - 4,647 176
801,316 - 650,424 150,892 913,941 - 704,510 209,431
952,676 - 786,565 166,111 1,123,602 - 893,744 229,858
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2024 31
11,848 20,427 209,431
* 10,628 (2,700) 12,889
- - 158,185
(7,650) (639) (143,443)
222 4,103 56,927
(1,830) (5,972) (143,097)
13,218 15,219 150,892
9,754 (7,246) (2,705)
2023 31
30,951 37,627 286,185
* (2,697) (17,580) 13,068
- - 96,125
(16,072) (6,005) (83,541)
293 24,967 110,355
(627) (18,582) (212,761)
11,848 20,427 209,431
2,273 5,414 (8,151)
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0TC

222 293 4,103 24,967

161 239
3,231

23,934

1,830 627 5,972 18,582
1,100 495

5,107 17,038
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DCF

CFO
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2024 31
*
651 433 DCF (%) 11.83-12.50%
10,873 13,029 DCF 3.36-3.88%
%)  10.32-13.56%
(bp) 37.85-90.12bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) 0.12-0.98
1,382 1,564 DCF 0.00-2.14%
(%)  16.98-63.80%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.63-0.91
312 193 DCF %) 0.26-1.40%
%) 35-35%
- 150,892 DCF
3.36-3.36%

(%)  10.32-13.25%
(bp) 37.85-90.12bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) 0.12-0.98

) 0.00-2.14%
(%)  16.80-63.80%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.63-0.91

%) 0.26-1.40%
%) 35-35%

13,218 166,111
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2023 31
*
736 779 DCF (%)  12.68-13.29%
9,622 14,027 DCF 0.64-8.51%
%)  8.97-14.14%
(bp) 37.58-79.28bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
1,145 5,445 DCF 0.00-5.82%
(%)  16.02-59.30%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.80-0.95
345 176 DCF %) 0.21-1.4%
) 35-35%
- 209,431 DCF

0.64-8.51%
%)  8.97-13.87%
(bp) 37.58-79.28bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
%) 0.00-5.82%
(%)  16.02-59.03%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.80-0.95
) 0.21-1.4%
%) 35-350%

11,848 229,858
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152 172

2024 31 2023 31
172 193

(20) (1)
152 172
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25
2024 31
) @ ©)
155,764 155,764 (54,151) (82,118) 19,495
394,975 394,975 (295) - 394,680
550,739 550,739 (54,446) (82,118) 414,175
142,395 142,395 (54,446) (87,949) -
142,395 142,395 (54,446) (87,949) -
2023 31
) ) ©)
98,144 98,144 (98,144) - -
366,865 366,865 (279) - 366,586
465,009 465,009 (98,423) - 366,586
204,863 204,863 (98,423) (106,440) -
204,863 204,863 (98,423) (106,440) -
€))
&)
®

1SDA
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2024 31 2023 31
8,366 7,433
1,321 1,321

36 969

9,723 9,723
99,879 122,159
92,979 120,940
6,900 1,219
801,316 913,941
522,730 552,001
278,586 361,940
1,336,509 871,085
1,336,509 871,085
2,247,427 1,916,908
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27

i NHI
8,958 (
1,138,200
NHI 464,300
NHI

29

514

NHI 514

NHI
54 62

NHI 54

21,821
806,231

683,517
58

:2,106 )

( :8,563 )

iii. ISDA

155,764 142,395

204,863

26,046
266

OoOoOoOoOodno
8,955
) NHI 1,465,600
239,700
1,016
11,048 )
NHI
658
658
3,743
203 3,743
203
21
36,647
790,230
1,579,043
144
2,929 (
70,834 35,987
9,475
98,144
21,649 100
25,946
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21,383
106
87
80
67
108
96
108
96
14
31 49

28

29 -

707

2024 12

20
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

INCOME STATEMENT
(RlilRaras of JPYT For the year anded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note

Interest and similar income 3 45619 30,780
Irteracst and similar oxponso 3 (71.088) 136.258)
Net interest income/{expensa) (25.467) (5.47T8)
Fea and commission expanse 4 (515} (e&0)
Cradit impaimeant gaini{lass) 5 {64) {115}
Net trading income/(loss) g 188,187 B2 4ER
Nat gainiless) on financial liabilities designated

at fair value through profit or loss 7 [162%,569) (54,751}
(Other operating gain/{loss) a 3,852 3
Net operating income 2424 1,764
Salaries and social charges 9 (267} [228)
General and adminisirative expenses 1 (181 {1,184}
Total operating expenses (1,458) (1410
Profiu{loss) before tax BEE 354
Taxation expense 12 (253) (2T}
Profitiloss) for the year 707 257
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[hions of JPY) For the year ended
31 Margh 2024 31 March 2023
Profiti{loss) for the year 707 257

Cther comprehenshve income/{loss):
items that will not be reclassified 1o income statemaent
Changa in fair value attributable 1o change in the credn risk of financial

liabiifties designated at fair value through proft or loss (alter tax) (3,429) 3845

Other comprehensive Income/(less) for the year after tax {3,429) 3,645

Total comprebensive Incomadloss) for the year {2.722) 3902
3
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Mielons of JPY) 31 March 2024 31 March 3033
Hote
Loans and advances 1o affiliates 513 55,185 356,248
Darivative inancial assats 513,14 32816 21.287
Total non-current assots BE 002 377,635
Loans and advances 1o affiliates 513,23,25 2.216,214 1,571,815
Darivative financial assats 513,14 124,078 81,661
Cash and cash equivalents 51315 380 Add
Imcome 1ax recaivabie 12 114 78
Cther current assels 513,16 86054 41.717
Total current assets A26.840 1,795.715
Total assats 524,842 Z2,173.250
Issued and pald-up caphal 17,26 8,366 7433
Share premium 26 1,31 1331
28 11,19 15,407
Retaned sarmlings 18 19,079 18.258
Total shareholder's equity 30,785 42 507
Dbt lssued and athar Barmowing 13,19 22,979 120,940
Fimancial liabiliies dasignated at fair value
through profit or loss. 13,20 522,730 552 001
Darvative inancial labilties 13,14 115,792 124,359
Defemad tax liabilities 12 2133 4361
Total non-current labllites T34,634 801,661
Bamowing from affiliates 13 1,336 508 71,085
Dbt izsued and other bomowing 13,19 6,900 1818
Financial llabllites designated at fair value
through profit or loss 13,20 278,585 351,940
Derivative financial liabilties 13,14 A5 568 85302
Qther curment liabilities 51321 92,8680 9,536
Total current labllities 1,750,423 1,329,082
Toital liakiliies 2 AR5 057 2,130,743
Taotal shareholder's equity and liabilities 2,524,842 Z,173.250

Statement of Financial Poskion iz presented atter appropriation of profit
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

oOoOooodn

kssued and Curraney Tatal
pald-up Share Own cradit  translation Retained  shareholder's
(Bdeons of JEY) caphal promium FOSEVD TEServe camings oequity
Az at 1 April 2023 7,433 1,321 14,528 069 18,256 42 507
Profit'{loss) for the - - - - T 707
pariod
Cther comprahensive
incomaliloss) - - {3,545} 116 (32,4297
Total comprehensive
Incomeiloss) = = (3,645) - 823 (2,722)
Eure denominated
capital exchange
waluation jre=] - {533 -
Az at 31 March 2024
{Mote 17) 8,366 1,321 10,983 36 19,070 30,785
lssuwed and Currency Total
pald-up Share Owncredit  translation  Retalned  shareholder’s
(Mg of JFY) capial pramium resene rasarve earnings oquity
As at 1 April 2022 §,991 1,321 11,018 1411 17,863 IBE05
Profiviloss) for the pariod . . . - 257 257
har comprehansive
income/{lozs) - - 3,508 136 3,645
Total com prehe nsive
Incamailoss) - - 3,609 - 393 3,902
Eure danominated
capital exchanga
valuation 442 . . (442} . .
As at 31 March 2023
(Note 17) 7,433 1,321 14,528 960 18,256 42,507

The realized cwn credit amount of JPY 116 milien gain after tax is recorded under Retaired samings as part of Other
comprahensive incomafass) and the unraalized own crodit amount of JPY 3,545 millon loss after tax is recorded undar
Reserve as pan of Dther comprehensive income/lass) for the year endad 31 March 2024, (JPY 138 milkon gain after fax
and JFY 3,509 million gain after tax respactively for the year ended 31 March 2023).

The currency translation resarve is a non-districulable legal reserve in accordance with Part 8 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code, On the other hand, the own credit reserve iz not a legal reserve
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

{hEBors of 4P}

Qperating activities
Prelit{loss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Het {gain)/lcas from financing activities.
Othors

Operating assets and oparating liabilities:
Decreasal(increase) in bans and advances 1o affiliates
Increase/decraase]) in bomowing from affillxies
Decreasel{increasea) in darvative financial assets
Increase’dacroass) in deivatve financial llabities
Decreasal{increasa) in other operating assats
Increasaf{decreass) in other operating labilties

HNet cash from operating activities

Financing activities

Preceeds from financial liabilites designated a1 fair value
through prodit or koss.

Redamgption of dabd issued and other bomowing
Redamgption of financial liabilites designated & fair value
through prodit or koss

Het cash fram finansing activities

Het increasaldecraase) in cash and cash equivalents
Het foreign exchange déferance

Cash and cash equivalenis at pericd baginning

Cash and cash equivalents at period end

Operational cash flows
Interest pakd

Interest racehved

Tax (paid)refundad
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Nate

13
12,14
13,14

16
=

13,20
1319

1320

15

12

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
To07 287

114,958 {41,216)

B0 1,054

(343,337 233,368
465424 83,259

(53, 946) 120,233
(58,301) {39,763)

45627 {19, 268)

83 324 {54,155}

254 536 284 332

244,283
(22,331)

476,583 386920
ﬁ,&n% EEEI,H-EE

183 422
{80.648)

(105 186

41 17

ddd 241
£ 444
(70,173) {29,487}
44,528 29,262
(207) (118}
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

Reconcillation of labilities arising frem financing activities

(Mithons of JPY) 1April 2023 Cashilow Nen-cash changes 31 March 2024
Changes In fair
wvalues and effect of
changes In lerelgn
exchange rates Cther

Db issued and other

borrowing 122,159 (22.331) 51 - #9879
Financial Eabikies designated at
fair value threugh profit or less 913,941 (232.310) 119,685 - 801,318
Total llabllithes from financing
activities 1,036,100 {254.841) 119,736 - 901,195

(sions of JFY) 1 April 2022  Cash flow Non-cash cha 31 March 2023
Changes In fair

wvalues and effect of
ehanges in leraign
exchange rates Other

Dwabd issued and athar

borrowing 202,573 (80,849) 235 - 122,159

Financlal Eabikies designated at

fair value through profit or loss 1,162 533 (203,497} [45,005) - 013,941

Total llabilithes from linancing

activitles 1,285,106 {284,146} (44,860} - 1,036,100
7
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Nomuera Europe Finance M.V, (the “Company”) iz a wholly owned subsidiary of Nemura Heoldings, Inc. (NHIT, a
company incomorated in Japan and ksted in Japan, the United States of Amadica and Singapons, which & ako the
uliimate parent of the Company.

The Company, incorporated and domiciled in Amsterdam, the Netherands, iz a limited liability company wndar the
Dutch baw and Bs registensd office i af Rembrandt Tower, Anstalplein 1, 1098 HA Amaterdam, the Nethedands
{Chamber of Commearce numbear 23221681).

The Company's principal achvity i 10 act as a funding entity for NHI and it subskfianes (collectively the “Momura
Group?).

The Gompany's financial statemants for the year endad 31 March 2024 shall be submitted to the Annual Gensral
Maating of Sharehaldars on 18 July 2024 for adoption. The shareholders meating can reject the financial stataments
Ibut cannot amend them.

2.  Matersl aceouming poliches
2.1 Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been prapared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS7 as adopied by the Eurapean Unicn ("ELT. The financial
statements have also bean prepared in accordance with the reguirements in Part 8 Book 2 of the Dutch Givil Goda.

The financlal staternenis have been preparad on a historical cost basls except for dervaiive financlal instruments
and financial liabilites designated at fair value throwgh profit and less, which have all been measered at fair value.

The financial stalaments are presaented in Japanese Yen (“JPY") and all values are roundad to the nearest millian
{“Milionz of JFY") except where otherwize stated,

The financial statemants are prapared on a going concem basis.

22  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that aHect the reported amount of revenues, axpenses, assets and liabiites, and the accompanying
disclosures.

Eair valus of f )

A gigniieant amaunt o judgomaents and ostimates ward applod to the fair value of cartain financial assets and financial
llakilithes. Varous valuation techniques are used to delermine falr values of financial assets and financial kablltles,
where thesa fair valses cannot be darived from an active markel. Observabls market data & usad in the valuvation

madits as lar as feasible, If no cbservable data ks available, a degres of judgemant ks required 10 detarmine fair valses.
Detallad information about the fair value of inancial instruments and valuaton technigues an set out in Note 24,

Imipai financial

The Company assessas expecled cradit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not hald at fair valua
through profit or loss, togather with kean commitments and financial gearantes contracts on a forward-looking basis,
The Company recognises a loss allowance al each reporting date. Detailed infornation about the judgemaents and
estimatas made by the Company whean caloulating expectod credit losses are set out in Mote 2.3,

23 Summary of material accounting policies

a}  Forelgn curmencles

The financial staterments are presented in JFY, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company.
Faralgn curmansy ransactions during the persd am transiated at the rates of exchange on the date of the transaction

Subsequent o initial recognition monetary lems are translated at closing rate and non-monetary items at historical spot
rale at each reporting date. Feroign axchange gains and lesses on financial azsets and financial labilties that ane
manetary assals and monetary llabilties are recognsed in the income slatemant.

]
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b} Oparating Incame

iy Interest income and expanse

Interast income and expanse for all financial instruments, except for thosa classified as dervatives held for trading and
Tinancial iabikties designated at fair value through proft or koes, are recognised undar inferes? and similar income of
Interest and similar expense using the effective Interest rate ("EIR") methed.

The EIR maethed is a method of caloulating the amodised cost of a financial asset or lability (or a group of assets
and liabilibes) and of allocating the interest income or inlerest expense over the relevant pericds. The EIR is the
rate thal exactly discounts the expected future cash paymants o recaipts through the expectad Ho of the financial
Instrument, or whan appropriate, a shorer parad. 1o the net carmying amount of the Instrument. This caleulation
takes into account the impact of all fees and commissions, paid or received, directly attribwtable to the tfransactions,
and dizcounis or premivms that are integral part of the EIR methad,

(i Met feas and commission ncome

Loan odgination fees are recognisad in the income statement as an adjustmant 1o the yield on the financial assets
carried a1 amartised cost using the EIR methed,

Upérant fees received and paid on dervative financial instruments are mecognised as par of the initial fair vale
raasuremant of the related financial instrumant

c) Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value. A description of the Company's policles
with regards to its application of fair valve measurements to significant financial instruments is as follows:

{iy Determination of fair values and fair value measurament

The Company maasunes fnancial instruments, such as dervatives, at tair value at each balance shes date. For
othar Bnancial instrumants which are maasured at amortised cost, fair valuas ane disclesad in Mote 24,

Fair value i the price that would be recahied to sed an assel or paid 1o transfer a liability in an ordarly transaction
betwean market participants al the measurament date. The fair value maasurement i basad on the prasumgtion
that the transaction to sall the asset or transfer the liability takes place aither:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagasus market for the assat or labilny

The principal or the most advantageous markat must be accessible by the Company.

‘Wheare quated market prices orbroken'dealer guotations ara not avallable for financial Instrumants, prices for similar
instrumenis or valuation peicing models are considerad in the datermination of fair value. Such financial instrumeants
are valued using models with significant unobservable Inputs such as comalation, leng-dated volatility, or othar
uncbsamvable inputs. Valvation pricing models consider contractual terms, position size, undarlying asset prices,
interast rates, dividend rates, time value, volatility and other statistical measurarmants for the relavant instruments
of tor Instruments with sinilar charastaistics. These models alse ncorporate adjustments relating 1o markel
liquidity adjustments. These adjustmants are fundameantal components of the fair valve calculation process. Tha
valuation technigue used maximizes the use of market inpuls and minimizes the use of Company-specific inputs
which are uncbsenabie in the market

Valuation pricing models and their undarlying assumptions impact the amaunt and timing of unrealised gains and
losses recognised and the use of differant valuation pricing models or underlying assumptions could produce
diffarent financlal results. Any changes in the fixed income, equity, and forelgn exchange and commedity markets
«can impact the Company's estimates of fair value in the future, polentially atfecting trading gains and losses and
alse gains and losses on financial Babiktles doskgnated at fairvaluee through profil or loss. The Company's estimates
of fair value may invelve greater subjectivity due to the ladk of transparent market data available upon which 1o
base azsumplions of undarying valuation prcing models,

The Company applies exception in IFRS 1348 to measura the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
on the basis of midprice. For hybrid instruments where embedded derivatives are separated and financial
instrurments which am dosignated thraugh prodit or loss, the exposure on such instrumants is offzet by the hadging
darivatives.

The Company does ngd apply hedge accounting and all references to hedging in the notes 1o the financial
statemants ane to econsmis hedging,
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All gaing and ksses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classfied as held tor trading
are recognised undar Nef trading incoma{lass).

(i) Recagnition of day 1 gains and losses

The fak value of a financial instrument & normally the trangaction price (1.0, the fair value of congidoration given or
recaivad). However, In some cases, the fair value at inception will be based on a valuation pricing modal
incompomating only cbservable parametars in the market or on cther cbservable current market tranzactions in the
same instrument, without modification or repackaging. Whens such valuation techniques are used to derive fair
vakies from marke! observable inputs, the difference between fak value and the fransaction price ks inRially
recagnised in the income statemant.

Valuatizn techniques incorperating significant unobservable parameters may also be usad 1o daterming fair valug
at inception. In such cases, the differance between the transaction price and model value iz only recognised in the
incme statemant when the inputs become cbservable or when the instrument i derecogn isad,

(il  Financial instrumants dasignated at fair value through profit or less

The Company seeks 1o minimize the markel rsks by entening ino derivative agreements 1o economically hedge
the exposures of medium term notes. The vale of hedging derivalive and the associated note have the same
perfarmance which offset each ather, thus by applying the tairvalue option (FVO7) to notes the Company sxpects
1o reduce recagnition inconsistancy and valuation volatilmy.

Starting from 1 April 2018, the Company apples the FVO o all newly issued notes under IFRS 9. The Company
manages and evaluaies perdomance of financial labilties (ssued notes) in such a way that the measurement of the
portfolio of notes a1 fair value through profit or loss provides mone relavant information for sk management purposes
and trarsparent undamstandng of the Company’s financial stalemants.

dj Financial instruments

Financlal instrumants within the scope of IFR S 9 are divided into three classiications; these measured at amartised
cost, these measured at fair value through profit or loss and these measured at fair value throwgh other
comprahensive incoms.

Financial Eabikties held for trading are measured at fair valus through profit or less, and all othar financial labilities
are measurad at amortised cost unless the FWD is applied.

The Gompany determines the classification of its financlal assats on initial recogniton except equity instruments
and derivatives basad on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’
contractual cash flow characteristics, Even though the Company’s financial assets may meet the criteria to be
clagsfiod a1 amortised cost or falr value through other comprehensive income, the Company may, a1 inftial
recognition, apply the FVO to those financial assets i doing 50 eliminates or significantly reduces a measurameant
of recognitan incsnsistency sametimes relered 10 &8 “accounting mismateh™) that would stharwite arse from
measuring assats or kabilties or moognising gains and lesses on them on differant bases.

i Financial assols

IFRS 9 requires all financial assels, except equity instruments and dervatives, 1o be assessed based on a
combination of the entity's business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow
characternstics. A financtal assel ks classifisd and subsequently measured al amonized cost. unless designated
under FWD, i the financial asset is held in a Hold 1o Collect business model and the contractual cash flows ara
Solaly Payments of Principal and Interest.

Undar this measurament calegory, the financial asset is measured at fair value at inflial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective imerast mathod of any
ditlerence between that initial amaunt and the maturty ameunt and adjusted for any impaimaent allowance,
Business madal:

There are three business models identified under IFAS & for financial assats:

= Hold 1o Sollect - Financlal assets held with the cbjective to collect contraciual cash flows.

= Hold to Colkect and 5ell - Financial asseis held with the cbjective of both collacting contractual cash flews and
saling financlal assets.

= Other - Financial assets held with trading intent or that do not meet the “Held to Collect” and “Hold 1o Collect and
Soll” qualitying criteria,

10
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company determines s business madel a1 the level that best refiects how It manages groups of financial
agsets to achieve its business objective. Factors considered by the Company in delermining the business modal
for a group of assets include how the cash flows from these asseis were collected, how risks are assessed and
managad, how the asset’s performance i evalualed and repored to key management personnel and the
frequency, value and timing of sales.

The Cempany manages a portlolio of financial assats through the Hold to Collect business model where all of the
follewing criteria are met:

- The portfolio & ot held with trading intant of iet rManaged on & falr valie basks;

- The porifolio of financial assets is managed to realise cash flows solely through collecting contractual payments over
the Ie of the financial assels rather than managing the cverall raturn on the portfalie by both hotdng and salling
financial assats; and

« Any sales of financial assets are expected 1o be infragquaent or insignificant,

To meet the Hold to Gollect business modal, the portiolic of financial asseds are o be held by the Company with
the strategy of calacting cash flows from the financial assets specified by contractual terms of the instrumant. A
financlal asse can only be measured al amorised cost where the contractual terms ghve rise on specilied dates 1o
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

Princigal for purpose of the SPPI test is defined as ihe fair value of ihe debt instrument al inftial recogniiion and
therefore the contractual cash flow characteristics ls detarmined based on a compariscn of contraciual cash flows
to the amaount actually invested. It i not necessarily the contractual par amount of the delbt instrument.

The mosi significant elements of Interest within a baskc lending arrangement are that i i consideration for the time
value of money and credit rsk. Intarest may also include a profit mangin.

{iy  Financial labilites ot amonised cost

Financial liabilities at amonised cost include the host contract of cerain medium term notes that are bifurcated and
athar borrowings. Financial liabilties at amortised cost an initally recognised on the date when the Company
becomes a party o the contract. After initial measurement, these instruments are subsequently measured at
amortized cost uging the EIR mathod,

(il  Financial liabilities dasignated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Eabiltles cdassified in this category are those that have been designated by managament a5 at falr value
threugh peofit or loss wpon inltial recagnition when the designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the
inconsistent treatment that would ctharwize arise from measurng the assets or liabilites or recognizing gains or
losses on them on a different basis.

These instrumenis are maasured initially at fair value and transaction costs are recognised in prefit or loss. For
these ingirurmeniz, fair value changes atirbuiable te the Company's credit risk are presented in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or less, thereby eliminating wolatility in profit ar loss in
ralation to own credil adjustmants. All other fair value changes ame presentad in profit or loss. Interest expanses,
galns and losses arising fresm changas in fair walug and transaction costs associated to the financial lablities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under Nt gain/{foss) on financial fabifies designared
at fair value through profit or loss, except for the currency translation effect which is incleded in Net trading
incomeloss)

Loan commitments designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less are within the scope of IFRS
9, Theze lean commitmaents am inlially recognised on the date when the Company Becomas a party 1o the contract,
and subsaquantly measured at falr value with changes in fair value reported under Net gainifoss) on Francial
Vabifbes designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(W) Dervative financial instruments

Financial instrumenis at fair value through profit or loss include derivative financial instruments held for trading.
Financial assets and linancial liabilties are classified as held for trading if (1) they are acquined or incurred
principally for the purpose of sale ar mpurchasa in the near term; (2) on Infial recogniton they are par of a portialio
of idemtdied financial instruments that are managed 1ogethor and far which thers iz evidence of a meant astual
patiern of shon-term prodit taking; or (3) they are derivalives, except for a derivative that is a financlal guarantee or
a dasignated and effective hedging instrumant.
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Comgany uses derivalives to economically hedge its nterest and lorelgn exchange. ANl dertratives are
recagnisad on the date when the Company becomes a party to the contract, Derivatives held for irading are initially
and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Dervatives with
positive and negative fair values are presented as assets and liabilities, respectivaly, in the statement of financial
|position.

A derfvative embaddad in a hybrid instrument that also Incledes a non-darvative hest that ls not a financial asset
is accounted for as a separate derivative if (1) its economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of thia host; (2) a separate instrument with the same tams as the embadded derivative woukd meet the definition
of a damvative; and (3] the hybrid rstrumant & not measured at falr valug with cha nges In fakr value recognised in
profit or loss.

Initia! measurement of nancial instruments

‘Whaen a financial asset or financial lability iz recognised inftkally, the Company measures it a1 its fair value plug or
minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not a1 fair valve through profit or loss, Iransaction costs
that are directly attributabla to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Deracognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the nghts to receive cash flow from the asset have expired or when the
Company has transferred s rights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Company has ranslemed
substantially all the rsks and rewards of the assat. A financial liabiity is derecognised when the obligation undar
the liability i= discharged, cancalled or axpires.

‘Whan an existing financlal llakihy ks replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
daracognition of the original liability and a recognition of a now liability, and tha difference in the respactive carrying
amaunts |s recognised in the income statement.

o) Impalrment

Under IFRS 9, the Company is required to record a loss allowance for expected credit loszes for all loans and othar
debt instruments not held at fair value through prof or koss, 1ogather with kan commBments and financial
guaranes conracts. The kss allowance is measured based on the expected credit losses that resull from datault
evenis on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date unless there has
been a significant incrgase in crodit rigk since crigination, in which cage, the loss allowance iz measurd based on
the expectad credl losses that rasul from all possible defaul events over the expectad Iife of a financial Instrument.

Expected cradit losses should be determined wsing all reasonable and supporable information which is reasonably
avallable a1 the Company's reporting date withaut undue cest of allar, including Information aboin pasl events,
curment conditions and ferecasts of future aconomic conditions. The infarmation vsed should reflect factors that ara
specific o the cbligor, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
dirpetion of conditiens at the Cempany's reporting date, Infarmation that i available lor financial reporing purmposoes
Is ahways considered to be avallable without undue cost or effor.

The general EGL impaimnent modal is used to measure expectad cradit losses against the majority of financkal
Instruments held by the Company which are subject to impairment through the ECL imgalmment madel under IFRS
4.

Expected credn ksses reprasant the diference betwesn the cash Tiows that the Company is enlited 1o recabe in
accordance with the contractual tarmes of the financial instrumant and the cash flows that the Company ultimately
expects o receive basad on fellowing modal.

The measwrement of expected cradit lbsses under the ECL impaiment model reflects:

« An unbiased and probability -weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible oulcomes;
+  The time value of money; and

+ Heasonable and supporiable information that is available withaut undue cost or afion at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of fulure econamis conditions.

Likstirne expected credi losses represant especied cradit losses that would result from all possile defauh events
over the expected e of the financial instrumant whereas 12 month expected credit losses are the portion of lifatime
axpected credit l0sses that represent the expected credit losses that result from default events en a financial
Instrurment that ane possible within the 12 months atter the reporing date.
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In grdar to determine whether 12 month or ietime expected credit lnsses are used, each financial asset and off-
balance shest financial insirument being individually or collactively assessed for impairment is classiied at each
raporting date inte one of following three stages of credit guality detarioration since the financial asset was initially
recognised

+ Stage 1 - Performing financial assats for which thems has been no signficant deterioration in credit quality
since initkal recognition;

« Stage 2 — Undarpedoming financial assats for which there has been a significant detericration in credit quality
since initkal ecognition bul which are not credit-impaired; and

+  Stage 3 - Nonpedoming financial assets for which thers has been a significant dedearation in credit qually
since initial recognition and which have beceme credi-impalred

A financial instrument thai is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is initially classified into stage 1 and is typically
subsequently continuously moniiored 1o deferming whather a significant Increase in cradit risk has occurred, at
which point the financial instrument is reclassified to stage 2. A datermination of whather a significant increasa in
cred risk has eccurned al each reporiing date will primarily be through a comgarison of Nomura Groug's Imemal
credit rating applied 1o the financial instrument at acquisition, originatian or issuance and the intamal credit rating
curmently assigned to the financial instrurment at the reporting date. A financial instrumeant will be reclassified into
slage 2 where the intarnal credit rating has declingd by mora than a specilic number of notehes (one 1o Tour)
depanding an the leval of rating assigned at initial recognition. If there is a further deteramation in credit quality such
that the financial instrument becomas credit-impaired, the financial instrurment is then reclassified into stage 3.

Imermal ratings are assigned basad on the assessment of the mid o long-lesm cagabiity and certamty of debt
repaymeant (craditwarthiness) in addition to the fundamental conditiens (fundamentals) of a given obligor ar facility.
Intermal ratings are reviewed regularty and on an ad-hoc basis, to ensure that the creditworthiness of a given obligor
will b duly and timaly taken into account,

A stage 3 financial assat can only be classified out of stage 3 and into stage 2 or eventually stage 1 when it no
longer meets the dafinition of baing credit-impaired, namealy when it i no longer probable that the Company will
not ba able to collect all prncipal and inerest amounts due in accordance with the orginal or madified contractual
terms of the financial assed

A financial asset is credit-impaired whan one or more events that have a detrimental imgact on the estimated fulure
cazh fhows of th financial aszat have occumaed since ofginatisn o purchase namaly and it i no longer probable
that the Company will be able 1o collect all principal and interest amounts due In accordanca with the contraciual
terms of the financial asset. The Company considers a financial instrument defauled (which is fully aligned with
the dedinition of credit-impaired) when there is failure of an obligor to make payments in full and on tme of any
financial obligations, makedy deadvaniagecus modilication to a contractual tem comparsd with the existing
obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of businass
«of an obligor or other similar sitvations. In addition, there is a rebutiable presumption that regardiess of the above
dafinition, dafaull iz deamed to occur and a financial instrument is crodi-impaird whan the inancial instruren is
a0 days or more past due.

A financial instrumant will continue to be cradit-impaired until the cbligor cures the reasons for credit-impairmant
or there has been a sustained observable pericd of repayment pedormance on the financial instrumant.
Dwtermination of what consiitutes a sustained period of repayment perdormance by the obligor depends on the
naturg of the financial instrurnent b will typically be for a period of & months or mone,

The allewance for expecied credit losses recognised against stage 1 financial assets is defermined using 12 menth
axpasted credn losses, Conversely, the allvwance againgt stage 2 or $tage 3 financial assets s based on liatime
expacted cradi losses,

Credit-impaked financial instrumants individually assessed for impairment ane typically writien-off when furiher
cash flows ane deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonable means o recovaring culstanding
principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on factors such as the
occurrance of significant changes in the obligors financial pesition such that the obligor can no banger pay the
obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay amounts due.

A write off of & financial instrumant such as a kean, mcevable o debl security rediecos the gross canying amount
of the financial instrument. Wie-ols are initially recognised against any existing allowance for expected credit
lo==es and can relate to a financial instrument in its entirety or to a porion of it

Recoveres ane recognised as a reduction of the provision for expected credt losses recognised through sarmings
during the rapating perkod.
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For stage 1 and siage 2 financial instruments, interest income s recognised during the reporting perkod at an
amaunt datamnined by applying the effective interest rate o the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument,

For stage 3 financial assets, intarest incomea is apphad by applying the eflective intarast mte (“EIR") 1o net carrying
amaunt of the financial asset namaly the gross carrying amaount less the allowance for expected credit losses.

The meazuremant of expected credit loszes through the general ECL impaiment modal iz typically determinad
within the Company usng ks rate medels or discounted cash flow models depending on the relevant staging of
the financial instrument. A lass rate modal measures expacted cradit losses for an individual or portfolio of similar
financial instuments through development of loss rates calculated through an estimate of the probability of default
{"POY) of the abligor and loss given default ("LGDT) which is applied to the expocted credit exposurg of the obligor
at default ("CEAD™). CEAD reprasenis the expected amount of credit exposure (i.e amount owed to the Company)
at the paint that the financial instrument dafaults

PD inputs are detarmmined by class of financial instrument and by intemal Momura credit rating applied 1o the
financial instrumaent. PD inputs used by the Company are sowced from industry data and validated based on
histarical expedence. PD inputs are prepared by referring 10 S&Ps historc rating migratien data and PD s
calculated over the next 12 months for stage 1 financial instruments and over the entire lifetime for stage 2 and 3
instrurnents.

Forward-looking information is incorporated into the PD inputs by forecasting economic scenarics and adjusting
the base case inputs for at least one optimistic and pessimistic scenario.

LGD inputs are determined by class of financlal instrument based on historical experiance of loss recovery rates
for simiar financial instruments and other relevant indusiry data. LGD inputs are adjested o reflect the impact of
colateral and integral credil enhancemants.

Faor revolving and non-revalving loan commitmants, the relevant absolute measwere of CEAD represants an estimate
of the 1atal amount of the faclity which will be drawmn by the obiligor by the time of dedault. This therefare includes
any portion of the facility curnantly fundsd and an additional adjusiment based on a conversion factor to estimate
of further amounts which may be drawn.

Cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancamants that are integral 10 contractual terms of the
financial instrument and not recegnised saparately by the Company ane included in the measurement of expecied
cripdn losses,

1] Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial kabiitles are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a legally
anforcaable right to sat off the financial assat and financial liability and the Company intends to settle the financial
assat and linanctal abiity on a net basis

q) Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prapared using the indirect mathod. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in
banks.

For the pupose of the cash flow stalement, Nef [gainbioss from Sranang acthities are non-cash Rems which incleds
the affects of foraign exchange results, amontisation of debt issued and othar borrowing using the effective interest rte
mathad and FWO valuation.

Tha movemant in the Defared tay assats and Fabiittes is included in the line tem, Othérs while the movemant in the
income tax receivable’payable) iz included in the lne items Decrease{increasa) in other operating &ssefs and
Incremse decraase) in other opevaning Jabiiiies, Both these line tems are prasentad under Nef cash from opevating
activilies.

h) Taxatlon

‘Cumrent tax assets and liabdities for the cumant and prior years ane measurad as the amount espectad to ba recoverad
from or paid to the taxation authorities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary diference between the carrying amounts in the
slatermant of linancial pasitien and the 1ax base, Delerred tax assots and labilities ar recognbed 12 the extent that
it ks probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary dfference can be viilksed.
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The 1 rates and tax aws used 1 compute the amount are those thal ane enacted or substantively enacied a5 of the
regodting date.

24  Opersting segment

The Cemgany has organised its business activitles based on fts products and senvices. As the Company only engages
in one cperating segment of financing activity, the gross and net assets and prefitioss before taxation as presented in
the face of the financial statemants are related to the sama segmant. The majority of the debt i issued 1o Japanase
Investons. All kan payables, lban recsivables and dervatives, except lor dervatives embedded In some of the madium
tarm notes, ane tranzacted with Nomuma Growp.

25 Changes In accounting policles and estimates

The accounting pelickes and estimates are consistent with thoss followsd in the preparation of the annual financial
statements of the previous financial year, axcept for the adoption of the following standards that have bacome
offective and ane relevant for the financial staterments of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024,

The amendments requine companias to recegnise defarred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give risa
to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temparary ditferences. The amendments ame effective for annual
periods baginning on or after 1 January 2023 and the Company adopied these amendments as of 1 April 2023,
The amendments were endarsed by EU during the year endad 31 March 2023

The=e amendmants had noe matedal impact on the Company's financial pasition and pafamance
Amandments 1o 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of

The amendments change the requirements in [AS 1 with regard to disclosune of accounting policies. Applying thesa
amandmants, an entity discloses its material accounting polickes, instead of its significant accounting policios,
Further amendments to 1AS 1 are made to explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy. The
amandments are effective for annual periods beginning an or after 1 January 2023 and the Company adopted
theze amendments ag of 1 Agdl 2023, The amendmaents were andersed by EU during the year anded 31 March
2022,

The amendmants had an impact on the Company's disclesures of accounting policies, but not on the measuremant,
recegnition or presentation of any Rems in the Company's linancial staternents,

On 12 Fobruary 2021, IASE issued amendmeants to IAS 8 Accounting Policiaz, Changos to Accounting Estimates
and Emars, in which It Intreduces a new definition of “accounting estimates”. The amendments are designed 1o
clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and comection
of emars, Tha amendmants are effective for annual periods baginning on or after 1 January 2023 and the Comgany
adopted thess amendments as of 1 April 2023, The amendments were sndersed by EL during the year ended 31
March 2022

These amandmants had no matedal imgact on the Company's inanclal pesition and parfomancs

On 23 May 2023, the Intarnational Accounting Standards Board ("IASE) isued Intermational Tax Reform—Pillar
Two Model Rules — Amandmenis to |AS 12 {the Amendments) to clarity the application of |1AS 12 Income Taxes to
income taxes ansing from tax law enacled or substantively enacted 1o implament the Organisation for Economic
Co-oparation and Development ("OECGDT)G 20 Inclusive Framewark on Base Ercsion and Profit Shifting ("BEPST)
Pillar Two moded rules. (Pillar Two income taxes),

The amandments ntroduce:

- A mandalory lemgerany exception 1o the accounting for delerod wes arging frem the jurisdictional
Implementation of the Pillar Two modal rules, and
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- Desclosure requirements for affected entities 1o halp usars of the financial Satements batter undarstand an entity's
exposure o Pillar Two income taxes arizing from that legislation, panicularly belore its effective date.

The mandatory temporary excaption — the use of which is required 1o be disclosad — applies immediately. The
remaining disclosure requiremants apply for annual reporing pariods beginning on or after 1 Janwary 2023. The
amandmonts ware endersed by EU during the yoar ended 31 March 2024

Based on the assessments made, these amendments do not have a material imgact on the Company's financial
posiion and performance. (Please rofar to Note 12).

26  Standards lssued but not yet elfective

At the date of authorization of these financial staternents, the following new standards and amendmenis to the
gxisting standands and interpretations which are likely to be applicable to the Company have been Esued by the
IASE but not yal effactive for the year endad 21 March 2024:

On 23 January 2020, |1ASB ksved amendments 1o IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statemeants to clarily the
requiremants for classifiving liabilties as current or non-current, Mare specifically, the amendments specify that a)
the condiions which exist at the end of the reporting period are those which will be used 1o determine i a right 1o
defer satemant of a llabilifty axists b) managament expectations about events after the balance sheet date, for
example on whather a covenant will be breached, or whether early satilement will take place, are not relevant ¢}
the amendments clarify the siteations that are considered seitlement of a liabdiy. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning en or after 1 January 2024 with eady adoption possible. The amendments were
endarsad by EU during the year ended 31 March 3024,

The Company expects to adopt these amendments as of the beginning of the inanclal year starting on 1 Apnl 2024,
The amendments will have an imgact on the Company’s disclosures but not on the measurament and recognition
of any fems in the Company's inanclal statemants.

The IASE's amendments io 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates require disclosure of
infermation that enables ugers of financial staemaents 1o understand the impact of a currgncy ngd being
exchangeable. Proposad changes are as follows:

- Spacify when a currency is exchangeabls inte another curmancy and when it is not
- Specily how an entity detarmines the exchange rate to apply when a currency i not exchangeable
- Require the disclosure of additional information when a currency ks not exchangeabla

The amendmanis ane affective for annual perieds beginning on or after 1 January 2025 with sarly adaption possible.
The amendments are not endorsed by EU yet

Based on the assassmeant made, thesa amendmants ane nof expected to have a malterial impact on the Company’s
financial position and perdormance.

3. Inmemestincome and expansa

Milens of JPY) For the yoar endad
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Interest and similar inceme
Loans and advances 1o affilltes (Mote 27) 45 602 0,779
Cash collateral (Mote 27) 14 1
Cash and cash equivalants 3 -

45519 30,780
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{lidions of JPY) For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Intarest and similar expense
Dbt issved and other bormowing (221) (223)
Cash collateral received (Naote 37) {31) (8]
Berawing from alfillates (Note 27) (70.834) [35.987)
[71,085) 26,259

Main reasons of the decrease in Net inferest income ana the changes in market conditions: of Interast, such as interest
raie gap betwean borrewing rate and lending rate wheare cumencies ane different.

4. Fes and commission expensa

(Milons of JPY) For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Guarantes tes (Mot 27) 1315] 1550
1515] {BE0)

5. Expected credit loss

The table belew shows the Companys maximum exposure 10 credit risk and loss allowances of financial
instruments sulbject to impaiment requiremants in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments as of the reporting date. Certain
of-balance sheet instruments which expoze the Company to a nsk of loss due to defaull by the paries underlying

these contracts ane also disclosed.
(Mitlions of JPY) As of
31 March 2024
Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to credit risk provision
Cash and cash equivalents 330 .
Other deblors 2275776 41
GCash collateral paid (Mote 16) 85,206 -
2364362 431
(Miflions of JPY) As of
31 March 2023
Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to cradit risk provision
Cash and cash equivalents 444 -
Cither debtors 1,831,584 sy
Cash collateral pald (Note 18) 138221 .
2,070,249 57

The maximum credit fek exposung from the financial azsets not subject 1o the impaiment requiremants in IFRS 9
Includes the darivalive fmancial assats as JPY 156 284 milion as of 31 March 2024 {31 March 2023: JPY 102,948
milicn} (Refer to Mote 14). Bifurcated emdadded derivatives are includad in the dervative financial asseis.
Agreaments to exchanoge collateral in cash have been concluded with countarparties 1o mitigate the creds sk
artsing from the valse of the darivalive financial instrumants (Feler t Note 25).

Balow table repregents the credit risk exposure of loans by intemal credit ratings and pericd end stage classification,
Inemal rating categones are split as follows:

1) 7 grades in high credil quality category, from AAA to A-

2) 3 grades In good credil quality category | from: BBB+ 1o BEE-

3) 3 grades in speculalive credit quality category; from BB+ to BB-

4) 3 grades in highly speculative credit quality category. from B i B-
5) 1 grade in substantial credit risk quality category: CCC

) 3 grades in delault grade category; from GG 1o D

Inernal credit ralings are assigned taking Inio consideration the eflects of economic Thictuations, o assess
creditworthiness of an obligor in one year or kenger from the mid to long-term perspective. In particular, intemal

credit ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid to long-term capability and certainty of debt
rapayinent in addtion 1o the lundamental conditions of a ghvon obligar of Taclity
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{iicns of JEY} As of
__ 31 Mareh 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Imemal Credit Rating
AAS A 443 550 - 4473 550
BBB+ / BEE- 1832226 - 1832286
BB+ /BB - . - .
B/ B- -
CCC -
Coib . - .
Gross carrying amount 2275TTE - 2,275,776
Loss allowance [#31) - - {431)
Carrying amount 2,275,345 - - 2,275,345
{Millionz of JPY} As of
21 March 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Internal Credit Rating
ANA A 435470 - - 435,470
EEE+ 'BEE- 1496114 B 1496114
BE+ /BB - - - -
B+ /B - -
Coo .
CoiD - - - -
Gross carrying amount 1,931,584 - - 1,831,584
Loss allowance (3ET) - - {387
Carrylng amourt 1,931,217 - . 1,931,217

The foliowing tables explaing the changes in loss allowance for the Company's financial instrurments betweean the
beginning and the end of the paried. The Company did not have any financial assats or off-balance sheat financial
instrumnents classified as Stape 2 or Stage 3 during the reporting pericd.

(Milions of JPYY 3 March 2024
Loans and
advanced 1o Loan

affillates commitments

Stage 1 Stage 1 Taotal
Beginning balance 204 163 357
Translors to stage 1 . - .
Translers to staga 2 - -
Translars i stags 3 . - .
Financial assets deracognised durng period {107} {163} {2709
Mew financial assels onginated or purchased B2 3ar 99
Writa offs . B .
Changes in modelisk paramaters {65} - (65)
Fomign axchangs adjustants . - -
Ending balance 4 337 431
ECL allowance or provision charge for the year 64
Farnaign exchanga -
Tatal ECL Income statemant charge for the year [T]
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(Miilens of JPY) 31 March 2023
Loans and
advanced to Loan
afllllates commitmenis
Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Beglnning balance 218 a7 258
Transters to staga 1 - - -
Transfers to staga 2 . B -
Translors to stags 3 . - -
Financial assets deracognised during period 1211) (36} 1247)
Mew financial assets onginated or purchased 205 163 -
Wite offs . . B
Changes in modesl sk paramaten: (B} - {B)
Fomign axchange adjestments {3 {1} (4]
Ending balance 204 163 AT
ECL allowance or provision charge for the year 111
Foreign exchange 4
Total ECL income statement charge for the year 115
& Neotwading Income(loss)
(Miilions of JPY]} For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Met trading incomel{less) on dervative financial
instrumants 157,758 4B, TG
Mot forekgn exchange gain'(loss) 30,429 13,742

183187 £2 458

Tha Company manages the rsks arsing from fluctuations in foralgn cumency exchangas and Intenast rabes with the
usa of deriative instruments. The gains and losses on darvatives, which are held for sk management purposes 1o
offset thesa flucluations are included in Net frading incomelosst

Far hybrid instruments whare the embaddad dervatives are separated and measured at fair value, the gains and
losses on hedging derivatives are offset by the gains and kosses on embeddad dervatives. For the instruments which
arg not bifurcated. the gaing and lsses on hedging dedvatives may cause fluctuation in the recognition of gains and
lesses in et trading income lass].

The vas1 majerity of the increasa of inceme in Met frackng income(loss) bor the year ended 31 March 2024 compared
to the year endad 31 March 2023 is resuRing from the hedging derivatives associated to the financial liabilities
dasignaied af fair valee through profit or loss, This increase is largely offset by a comesponding increase of less in
the Mef gain'fless) on Arancal ablifes designaled af far valve through profil or less (Mote 7).

Hisk management, for information regarding the nature and extent of the Comgany s dealing with financial instruments,
s deszlosed in Note 23

7. Metgain{loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value threugh profit or loss

{Mitions of JPY} For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mat gainilloss) on financial liabiliies designated at fair
wialue through profi or koss (163,569} 54.751]
(163, 585) [54.751)

Imerest expenses, gaing and lsses ansing from changes in fak value and transaction o515 assockated with the
financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss ame recognised undar Nel gain/floss) on fnancial
Vabifbes designated af fair valuve through profit or loss, except far the curmency translation etfect which is included
in Net traging inconme(iass] (Nate &)

Thiz incraasse of kasin Nat gainfiess) on financial Tabiities designated at falr vakie threugh prolit or loss iz largaly
offset by an increase of income in Met frading income(loss) (Note &) resulting from the hedging dervatives
associated to the financial liakilities designated at fair value through profit or lass.
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B, Other cperating galny{loss)

{Millions of JPY} Fer the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Transler paicing adpustmant (Note37) 3,743 203
COther gains (Mote 27) 108 a8
3852 30

Transier pricing adjustment

The Company had an advance pricing agrement for the avaldance of double taxation in the Netherlands and in
Japan, with the effective period started from 1 Aprl 2018 and ended 31 March 202 The Company's advanca
pricing agreement expired on 31 March 2022 and after that, the Company has updated Rs transfer pricing
documantation. According to the updated transter pricing documentation, the transler pricing currently applied 10
the Company does nod substantially differ from the expired advance pricing agreemant. In relation 1o the vpdated
transfer pricing documentation, JPY 3,743 million gain was incurred for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March
2023 D JPY 203 milion gain).

9. Salaries and soclal charges

(Milliers of JPY} For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salarias 203} (178
Pension pramium (37} (25)
Soclal charges and welars 127} (23]

:ﬁir 522‘6
10. Number of emplayees
The Compary had 14 employess woking i the Mathorlands as of 31 Mareh 2024 (31 March 2023 15). 7 of the 14
employaes were working pan tme as of 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: 7).

11. General and administrative exponses

(Miilions of JPY) For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Sub-contractor fees (Motes 27) {134} (138)

Taxes ather than income tax {905} (204]

Indepandant auditors” expensas” {51} (48]

Other professional fees {25} {30)

Adminisiratve (Nota 27) {70 (61}

Others. {1} {3

(1.181} {1.184]

“Independant auditors” axpansas

(Miilions of JPY) —  Forthoyoaronded
T 3TMarch2024 31 Mareh 2023 _

Audit {stannony) (22} (20]
Audit - other assurance services 125} I -
{51} (48]
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12, Taxatlon
The compenents ol the taxation expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as follows:

(Mitliorms of JPY) For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax:

Current income tax (255) {248}

Adjugtmaent in respact of curmant income 1ax of prior

years 1

Deferred tax:

Relating 1o temporary diferences i5) 151
Taxation expansa 1255 [EH]
{Mitlions of JPY) For the yoar ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Predit bafore tax HES 354
Al Dutch statutory income tax rate (243) M)
Adjustmant In respect of current Intame tax of pror years 1 .
Etfect of parm 1 diffarence baly taxable ncoma
and accounting profi {11) [l
Taxation expanse (259) {97]

The statutory incoms tax rate for the years endad 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 is 25.8%. The effective tax mte
is 26.6% tor the vear anded 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: 27.32%). Based on the Country by Country Repating
transitional zate harbor, the Company (after applying jursdictional blending) should not be afectad by BEPS Pillar Il
and thera should not be any potential impact on income taxes, which needs 1o be disclosed in the financial statements

of the Company.
The movements in the income 1ax receivable and defamed tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

{iiiions of JEY) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income tax (payable)recaivable

Baginning balance T8 237
Payment 307 116
Changad 10 income (254) {248)
Ciher movemants (17} {27
Ending balance 114 Fi:3
Defarred tax assets/(labilities)

Baginning balance 14,361) (3.292)
Deabarmed tax attrbutable 10 change B own cradit risk 1.233 [1.2200
Increasal{decreasa) related to temporary difterences {5) 151
Ending balance {3,133) [4,361)

Dafarred tax assets and liabilties are recognised for temporary differences batween the carmying amounts in the
statement of financial positien and the tax base, Delered taxes occur due to the differences in tax base
mgasuramant and recognition timing of taxable income. The majority of the delarred tax assats and labilties o
the Company partain to the valuation of the darivative linancial instruments and financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss.

The components of the defermad tax recognized in the statement of linanclal position as of 31 March 2024 and 1
March 2023 are as follows:

As of
Millons of JPY) 31 March 2024 31 March 2022
Dadarrad tax anributable 1o own credi sk 3.819) {5,052)
‘Waluation of financial instruments 577 593
Loss allewancas for financial instrumenis 109 93
(3.133) 4.361)
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13, Financhal Instruments classiication summary

Miilens of JOY)

Loans and advances 1o affiliates
Darvative financial assats
Cash and cash equivalents
Other assats
cazh collateral paid (Mote
18}
Tatal fnanclal assats

Debt issued and othar bomowing
Fimancial liabiliies designated at fair
walue through predit or kss
Bamowing from affiliates
Darivative inancial labilities
Cther kabikthes

- cash collataral received

{Note 21)

Tatal financial liakiities

{Millions of JPY}

Loans and advances 1o affiliates
Darivative inancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Othir assats

- cash cellateral paid (Note
18)
Total financial assets

Dbt issued and other bomowing

Financial liablites dasignated a1
fair value throwgh profit or loss

Bomrowing from affiliates
Darivative inancial labilities
Cther Eabilties
cash collataral received
{Mote 21)
Total financial liabilities

As of
_ 31 March 2024
Financial Mandatorily Financial Financial liabilities
assets at at fair value  liabilities st designated at fair
amortlsed throwgh amonised value through
cost profi or IEH COst profit or loss Total
2,271,400 - = 2,271,400
. 158,884 - 166894
380 - - l]
28,208 - - 8206
2,359,986 156,894 - 51680
95,879 - 99,879
. ED1,318 BD1,318
. 1,336,509 - 1,336,500
151,380 . - 161,380
. . 52,532 - B2522
- 151,360 1518910 BO1316 2471586
As of
21 March 2023
Flnanclal Mandatorily Finamelal  Financial labliitles
assots at at falrvalue  llabilitles at  designated at falr
amortised through amorntised value through
cost preli or loss cost profit or loss Total
1,928,063 - - 1,928,063
- 102,948 - - 102,948
ddd . - 444
138 801 - = 13521
2,066 728 102,948 - - 2 169,676
. . 122,159 . 122,159
- 913,84 213,841
871,085 - 871,085
209,651 - - 209861
209,661 893,244 13,841 2116846
22
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14, Dervative financial instruments

{Millicns of JBY) As of
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Darivative financial aszats;
Foreign exchange related derivatives 24,618 9,889
Intarast rate derivatives 15,087 13,534
Equity derivalives 42 545 24,211
Commuodity dorivatives 73,440 54,582
Cradit darvatives 1.203 -7
156,854 102848
—
Derivative financial liabilities:
Foreign exchange related derivatives a7,133 109,321
Intarast rate darivatives 22,497 2,783
Equity dervatives 14,111 60,305
Commadity derivatives 15,550 13,418
Cradit dorvatives 2.069 4823
151.360 209,881
Above figures in tables consist of curment and non-current derivative financial assets and dertvative financial
liabiliths,
(Miilens of JPY) As of
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Motional amounts:
Foreign exchange related derivatives 2,161,879 1,438,710
Intargst rate derivatives 411,088 430,733
Equity dervathves 200,454 342,600
Commaodity derivatives 103,500 105,000
GCradit darvatives 132,743 172,548
3,008, JEd 2,539,501

All the above figures in tables include biurcaled embedded derivatives. Each dervative classification includes
darivatives referencing muliphe risk components. For example, interest rate contracts include complox dervatives
raferencing interest rate rsk as wall as loralgn exchange risk.

All farsign exchangs ralated derivatives and ather darvatives mentionad above, except far bfurcaled embaddad
darivatives, are transacted with Momura Group.

The Company uses derivatives for hedging purpeses in the managemant of ks medium term netes portiolio, This
anables the Company to mitigate the market sk and interest rate risk arising from its assets and liabdities.

Whan calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credfl and debit valuation adustments are taken inlo account,
The cradit and debit valuation adustments aré minimal as the Company exchanges cash collataral (Waotes 16 and
21),

15. Cash and cash equivalents

The balance only comprises of cash in banks which is unrestricted for disposal

16, Other assets

{Millions of JOY) As of
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other current assets
Cash colateral pakd (Notes 5 and 27) 28,206 13821
Others (Mate 27) 7.848 3,496
5,054 141,717
23
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Undar Intemnational Swaps and Dervatives Assockation (1TS0A7) Creds Suppont Annex signed with related paries, the
Company posts Cash collateral o dervative counterparties related to dervative transactions. Others mainly includa
accrued interest income.

17, Issued and pald-up caphal and reserve

The authorised share capital conaists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Evre ("EURT) 454 par value per share. The isswed
and paid-up share capital compnzes of 113,000 shares with ELIR 454 par value per gharg,

Dwatails of the izsued and paid-up capital are as follows:

_ As of
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
lssued and paid-up capial at histonical cost (JFY Millisns) 8,402 8,402
sued and paldup shams (Thousands) 112 113
Par valua per share (EUR) 454 454
Issued shares at par value (EUR Thousands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (EUR-JPY) 163,065 144 885
lssued and paid-up capial (JPY Millions) 3,366 7433

Diference between issued and paid-up capital and kssued and paid-up capital at historical cost is presented undar
resanves as follows:

{ Mitlions of JEY] As of

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
kssued and paidup capial al historical cost B 402 8,402
Issuad and paid-up capial 8366 7.433
Transtation diflerence 3 369

Az required by Article 2373 paragraph S of the Dutch Civil Code the lssued and paidlup capifal account iz
measured using the shares Bsved and pald-up al par and translated using the desing rate fram EUR 1o JPY as of
the reporting date. The difference batween the histodcal cost and the carrying amount of the issued and paid-up
capial as of the reporting date is recorded undar Currency fransialion resene

18, Dividends pald

No dividend was declared or paid during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

19. Debt issued and ether borrowing

&, Non-current delbt issued and other bomowing

{Mitliers af JPY) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Blaginning balance 120,240 161,608
Redemptions (14,542} {31,430)
Rectassilications 1o current labllities {13,470} 19,424)
Cther movements 51 188

Enging balance 92979 120,840

b, Current dobt Bsued and other borrowing

{Miiliona of JPY]) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Baginning balance 1,219 40,867
Redemplions (7, 788) 49.219)
Rectasslllcatkons fram non-cument llabdtles 13,470 9,424
COther movements - 47
Ending balanca 6,500 1,218

In the above tables, cther mavemants are mainly related 1o the effects of the foreign axchange results.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
20, Financial labliities designated at fair value through prefit or loss

a. Mon-current linancial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

(Millions of JPY) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Beginning balance L5200 721,494
lssuas 174,854 A4 350
Redemplions (145 884) [54,819)
Reclassiications to current kabiities (96, 6548) (187 285)
Foraign exchange resulis 11,470 6,387
Unraalsed mvaluations 17,834 (22.701)
Changes in cwn cradit risk 4,142 [5.578)
Oaher movemants {264) {47]
Ending balance 522,730 552,001

b. Current financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or kss

[Adiions of JPY) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Epginning balance 361,940 441,039
lzsues 64,429 £8,073
Redemplions (330,929) (332.301)
RaclassHications from nen-current liabilities 95,688 187,285
Foreign exchange results 5401 11,667
Unrealksed revaluations 79,250 (35.816)
Changes in own credit risk B54 799
Cther movemants 173 (8]
Ending balance 278,586 361,940

The impact of fair value changes attributable to the Company's own credit risk incleded in other comprehensive
ineameless) on financial liabilites dasignated at fair value through profit or ks is an unealized loss of JPY 4,778
milkon for the year ended 31 March 2024 (21 March 2023: JPY 4,728 milion gain). The cumulative wvaluation
adjusiments resulling from own credit i an unrealised gain of JPY 14,802 million as of 31 March 3024 (31 March
2023 JPY 18,579 million gain). The Company calculates the ewn credit spreads referring fo secondary market
|pricas.

Contractual due amounts of the notes which are issued by the Company may link to various Indices. For risk
managament purposes, the Company vses derivalive transactions to hedge the risk arising from the fluctuations
of indices. Contractual cbligations are includad in the tair value measurement of financial instruments by wsing
parametsrs and models 3% of the reporting date as disclesed In Note 24. Fair value. Own credi adjustment amounts
are disclosed separataly in the above.

The netes with pincipal protectad natune have a canmying amount of JBY 297 289 million and the principal obligation

of JPY 350,077 millien as of 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 carying amount JPY 205 548 million, principal
obligation JPY 357,452 million).

21. Other liabilites

{Mitliorts of JPY) As of
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cther current liabiliies
Cash collateral received (Motes 5 and 27) 82,582 .
Others 10,328 9,535
92,880 8,535

Under 150A Credn Suppon Annex signed with related partles, the Company recelves Cash collmeral from dervative
counterparties related to dervative transactions. Others mainly include accrued interast expense and ather accrwed
BXPENEEs.
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22, Commitmants and contingent llabllitles

The Company has JPY 2,043,343 milllen unseitled loan commiments fo Nemura Group companies as of 31 March
2024 (31 March 2022 JPY 523,217 million). Unsattled loan commitmeants are held off balance sheat, until the point at
which they become drawn.

23. Risk management

The Company'’s fsk managemean! acthvities Involve both the assessment and transfer of canaln fsks which the
‘Company must manage. The mast impotant types of risk ane market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and oparational risk.
Market risk includes cumency risk, price risk, and interest raie risk.

The Company's primary cbjective is to act as a financing vehicle for Nomura Group, To this end, the Comgpany
issues debl with retumns linked %0 a varety of difterent indices including but not limited 1o equites, Rterest rate,
foreign exchange, cradit and commodities. The Company actively manages the resultant risk using derfvative
financial instruments with the intention of eliminating significant market risk ansing from such instruments. Tha
Company transacts these dervative instruments sclaly with other entities within Memura Group.

The Company’s financial instuments include loan advances, cash collateral deposited to or recaived from other
antfies within Momura Group, debt sued and other bormawing, financial ingtruments designated at fair value
threugh proft er less and derfvatives and borrewing from alfiliates.

The Three Lines of Defence
MNemura Greup engages in the risk managemeant through the “Three Lines of Defence” framawark:

First Ling of Dafance: All axecuiives and employees of the frent office for Financial Risk and all execulives and
employees for Non-Financlal Risk are primanly responsible for risk management and assume the consequences
associated with business execution and to provide evidence and justify that the rsk arising from their business
acivitias IS in line with risk appatite.

Second Line of Defence: The depariment responsible for risk management supparts and monitors management
acibellios on the First Line of Defence and reports 1o board and the sankor management. In addition, the Second
Ling indepandantly evaluates risk management govemance establshed by the First Line.

Thirg Ling of Defence: The Intemal Audit function examines and evaluates the risk management from an
indapandant standpoint, provides advice for improvemant, and reports the examination and evaluation are reported
to the Audit Committaa.

Sroup Risk Appetite

Medmiira Group has detarmined the types and levals of risk that B will assums in pursill of its strategle sbjectives
and business plan and has aiculated this in its Hisk Appetite. This document is jintly submitted by the CGhief Risk
Cfficer (*GROC") and the Chief Financial Oficer ("CFC") to the Executive Managemant Board (EMB?) for approval.
It will thon ba furher reviewad at the Baard Risk Committes (BRCT through the authority to consent te the relavant
propesal ralsed by the execuiive side.

The Risk Appetite provides an aggregated view of risk and includes capital adequacy, liquidity, financial risk and
nendinancial sk, It ks subjest 1o regular monfioring and braach escalation as appropeiats by the swner of the
relevant sk appetite.

MNemura Group's Risk Appetie s required to be reviewsd at least annually by the EME bat it is reviewed on an ad-
hoc basks if necessary, and must specilically be reviawed following any significant changes in Nomura Group's
sirategy. Rizk appetite undarpins all additional aspects of Momura Group's risk management framewark.

Glob: Structure

The BRC provides specialized oversight 1o deepen the cversight functions of the Board of Directors ("BeD). To
ensure 3 high degree of independence, the BRC is chaired by an outside director. The BRG contributes to more
gephigticated Nomura Group risk managemant mainly in the areas sutlined balow:

= Amendment and abolition of the Risk Appetite Statement

= Change in risk management framework

+ Rozuhs of analysis and verification or futurg fomsasts of rizk anvironment

+ Execution state of the averall dsk managament and medium- 1o keng-term risk strategles

The Group Risk Managament Commitiee (GRMC™) shall be operated, upon delegation from the EMB, for the
26
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pumpese of deliberating on or determining Impartant maters conceming enerprise risk management of Nomura
Group and thereby assuring the sound and effective managemaent of the businesses,

The GRO, upon delegation from the BoD or the EMBE, is mesponsible for the risk management framewark for
financial risks as the second Bne of delense. The CRO can delegate the authorty 1o the committees which
dolibarate en and detorming the matters concorning financial fsk managomant and the parsons responsicle for
financlal risk managemeni. The CRO assesses the non-financlal fsk management framework and ensures the
adequacy of the frmamework by challenging the corporate functions, such as giving instructions on necessary actions
to enhance the framework. The CRO also challenges Liquidity Risk management activilies as necessary, The GRO
I rasponsible for managling the Risk Appatia jolmly with the CFO.

The GFO, upon delegation from the BoD or the EMB, is respoensible for managing financial resources and the sk
managemant framework for Liquidity Risk as the second line of defenze, and for managing the Risk Appotite pintly
with the CRO. The CFO can delegate the authority 1o the committees which delberate on and detemmine the
mattars conceming managing financlal resources and Liquidity Risk management

The Chiaf Complance Officer (007 is responsible for taking the lead in the coordination for formulating the
appropriate management iramewerk and designing Risk Appetite for Reputational Bisk, with the cooperation of
CRO. The CCO also cooperates with CRO who is responsible for monfonng and maintaining of the effectivenass
of the Risk Appetite. Officers, who overses the functions in charge of Operational Risks in accordance with the
Risk Managemant Paolicy of Three Lines of Defence, are responsible for formulating the apprepriate management
Tramework and taking the lead In designing Risk Appeiles for Operational Risks they cover. They alse cocperate
with the GAC who is responsible for monftoring and maintaining of the effectiveness of the Risk Appetites.

Policies, standards and procedures are esseniial tools of governance and deline principles, rules and standards,
and the specific precesses that must be adhered 1o in order w0 efectively manage sk at Nomura Group. Risk
managament cperations are designed 1o funclion in accordance with these policies, standards and procedures.

Development, consolidation, monfioring and reporting of sk management information ("MI7) are fundamental i
the appropriate management of risk. The aim of all risk Ml is 1o provide a basis for sound decision making, action
and escalation a8 requined. The Risk Managarmem Division and the Finance Division ane responsible for prodicing
regular risk MI, which reflects the position of Momura Group relative to staled risk appetite. Risk M| includes
infermation from across the risk classes defined in the risk management framewerk and reflect the use of the
vansus risk tools used 10 kently and assess those risks These divisions are responsible for implamenting
appropriate controls over data integrity for risk M.

The Company’s qualhative and quanitative risk management

Markes Rigk

Market risk Is the risk of loss ansing from fucteations in values of inancial assets and Kabilies (Including off
balance shast tems) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign exchange rales, prices of
securities and othars), Effective management of maket risk requines the abllity 1o analyss a cemplax and evaling
portlolio in a constantly changing global market envircnment, identify problematic trends and ensure that
appropriate aclion is taken in a timely manner. The Company seeks 1o minkmise the market risks by entering into
dorivative sgreamaents to econamically hadge the exposures in s leangs and medium term netes. The maturity
structure of the derivatives comesponds with the maturity of the medium term notes belng hedgead.

Intgres! Rate ard Equily Price Risk

It is the palicy of the Company to hedge interest rate and equity price exposures wvia the use of interest rate
daerivatives, cross currency dervatives or equity swaps.

The Company raises funding with short-term or long-term bamowings through the issuance of madivm term notes.
The Company funds the desired currencies at both fived and floating rates of interest and then usas both interest
rate and curency dervalives fo generate the desired interest rate hedge profile. This will involve matching the
coupon dates on both the assets and liabdltkes wherne ralevant.

Applying the above hedging policy on imenest rate exposure, the Company does nol have a signilicant interest rate
exposure as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Currency Exposure

Cumency exposures are comprised of the monatary assets and monetary liabiliies of the Company that are not
denaminated in the functional curency of the Company. All matedal net curmency exposure ansing frem activities
of the Gompany Is activaly hedged using foralgn exchange related dertvatives andler currency derivatives.
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It Is the pelicy of the Company ned 19 trade currency expesure; therelore, all currency dervative tansaciions are
antared inta with the intentien of hedging anly.

Applying the above hedging policy on cumency exposure, the Company does not have a significant cumency
exposure a8 of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Libor Transition

GEP, CHF, JPY, and EUR LIBOR rates had ceased on 31 December 2021, whareas the most used USD LIBOR
tenars continuad b be published until the and of June 2023

Dwring the years endad 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, Nomura Group, including the Coempany, focused on
the transition of USD LIBOR contracts and conducting new transactions uzing the recommended altarmatives,
Mamura Group has assessad the impacts while managing |BOR transition and seeking 1o mitigate risks. Migrations
for existing IBOR positions wene perormad with the involvement of multiple depariments across Momura Group.
Ag pan of the fransition process, Nomura Group focused on transitioning clients away fram visble legacy |IBOR
contracts. In this regard, Momura Group including the Cempany held transition discussions with the clients and
received consant from the holders of notes which wara refarring to LIBOR.

Dwring the year endad 31 March 2024, the Company completed the transtions of USDLIBOR contracts. The transitions
comphated xe of the regarting date did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial pesition and pedfamance.

LCradit Risk
Cradit Risk Maragement

‘Credit risk is the risk of loss ansing from an obligor’s default, insolvency or administrative preceading which results
in the cblgor's failure to moat g conractual obligations in accordance with agraad terms, This includes bath on
and cfi-balance sheet exposures. It ks alse the risk of loss ansing through a credit valuation adjestment assoclated
with deterioration in the creditworthiness of a counterparty.

The measunsment, menlorng and managament of credt risk at Nomara Groug ane governed by a sat o global
policies and procedures. Cradit Risk Managameant (*CRM). a global function within the Risk Managament Division,
is responsible for the implementation and maintenance of these policies and procedures. Credit risk is managed
Iy CRM togather with various global and regional risk committeas, This helps to anzure transpanncy of material
credit risks and compliance with established credit limits, the approval of materal extensions of credit and the
egcalation of rigk concantrations 1o appropriate senicr managemant, The Crodit Risk Control Unit iz a function
within the Rk Model Valdation Group which i independent of CRM. It sseks to ensure that Nomum Group's
intarnal rating system is properly reviewed and validaled, and that breaks or issues are repored to senior
managemant for timely resclution, The wnit is responsible fer ensuring that the aystem remaing accurate and
prediciive of risk and provides periedic reparting on the Syster 1o senior managemant.

Cradit Qualty of Fingncial Assets

The Gompany s a fully owned subsidiary of NH1, whe is the guaranior of the notes issued by the Gompany, tegathar
with another related party. Therefore the Company considerad the credit rating of Nomura Group as the same
cradi rating received by NHI frorm S&P Global Ratings which is BEB+ az of 31 March 2024,

The Company’s loans and demvative financial instruments are traded exclusively with Nomura Groug. The axternal
credn rating of NH| is considarad 1o exhiblt adequate protection paramaters, as dafined by S&P Global Ratings,
Consequently, the Company deems that credit risk is minimised.

Cragit Risk Mitigarion Techniques

As mentioned previously, the Company enters into 153DA master agreements or equivalent agreemants (caliad
“Master Netling Agreaments) 1o mitigate its exposure to cradit risk, Master Metling Agreamants allow netting of
recaivables and payables and reduce losses potentially incurred as a result of a counterparty default Further
reduction in credit risk is achieved through entering info cellateral agreements that allow the Company fo obtain
coliateral from counterparties, The impact of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities which are subject to
these agreements ks not reflected in the statement of financial position,

Impaired Financial Assafs

The Company assesses on a lorward-laoking basis the expected credit ksses assoclated with its financial assaels.
The Company recognizes a lss allowance for such lossas at each reporting date as described in Mole 2 3.8

Al leans ane transacted with Nemura Group. Please see Mote 27 for the amaunt of imgakment gain/loss recognisad
for the year ended 31 March 2024 and prior pericd.
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iquidity B
Liquidity Risk Management!

Momura Group defines liquidity nsk as the rigk of lees ansing from diffizulty in sscuring the necassary funding or
from a significantty higher cost of funding than normal levels due to datercration of Nomura Group's
creditworthiness or detedaration in market conditions. This risk could arise from Momura-speciic or market-wida
ovaniz guch as inabilty to access the secured or unsecured debt markels, a deteroration in Nomura Group cradit
raitings, a lallsre 1o manage unplanied changes in funding requirements, a fallire 19 lguidate assets quickly and
with minimal loss in value, or changes in regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds
betwean different Mormura Group entities. Liguidity risk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite
formulated by the EME. Nomura Group's liquidity risk management, under maket-wide stress and in addition,
under Nomura Sroup specific stress, seeks to ensure encugh continuous liquidity to meet all funding requirements
and unsecured debt cbligations across ong year and 30-day perods, respectively, without raising funds through
unsacurad funding or through the liquidation of assets.

Nemura Group has in place a number of Liquidity Risk Management framewerks that enable Momura Greup 1o
achiave its primary liquidity objective. Thess framewarks include (1) Centralized Control of Reskdual Gash and
Maintenance of Liquidity Porfolio; (2) Lhilization of Unencumbarad Asselz as Panl of Liguidity Portdolio; (3)
Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and Maturities Commensurate with the Composition
ol Asseis: (4) Management of Credit Lines 1o Nomura Group Entitles; (5} Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tesis;
and (&} Contingency Funding Plan.

The EME has the autheriy to make decisions eoncaming Nomura Group liguidity managemaent The CFO has the
operational authorily and responsibiity over Nomura Group's liquidity managemsnt based on decisions made by
the EME.

The Company ks fully Integrated Inte Nomura Group's Liquidity Risk Management framewaorks ghean fts primary robe
a5 the funding wehicle of Nomura Group.

The maturity profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitored and managad by Global
Treasury of Nomura Group o avoid any concentration of funding by maturity and source. The distribution of sources
of tunding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order 10 ensung access 1 funds and to avold a
concantration of funding at any ona time or from any one Source.
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cperational Risk

MNemura Group delines operational risk as the risk of loss or non-inancial impact ansing from inadequate or falled
Internal precesses, people and systems or from external events. Operational risk includes n its definition
compliance, legal, IT and cyber sacurty, fraud, third party and ether non-financial risks. Cperational risk does not
ineude sirategic risk and roputational rigk, hawavar, seme cparational rigke can laad to reputational issues and as
such cperational and reputational risks may be closaly linked

Cparational Risk Management Framework

An Operational Risk Management ("ORM") Framawork has baen establshed in order to allow Nomura Group 1o
identify, assess, manage, monitor and repor on operational risk. The GRMC, with delegated autharity from the
EME has formal oversight ower the managemant of oparaticnal risk,

The ORM framawork congistz of 1) Foundatien of the sk management framework, 2) Koy risk management
aciivities and 3} Outputs from the risk management activities. The Gompany is fully integrated into Nomura Group's
ORM framework.

Below are tha measures 1aken to control the maln operational risks which form key rsk management acthvities in
the ORM framework:

- Ewent Reporting: This process is used to identify and report any event which resulted in or had the potential 1o
rogull in a ks or gain or other impact associated with inadequate or tailed intamal processes, peophe and sysems,
or from extamal evarts.

+ Rk and Conrol Sel-Assessmaent: This process is used to identily the inherent risks the business faces, the key
comrols associated with those risks and relevant actions 1o mitigate the residual risks.

+ Koy Bisk Indicators: Thode am thi motrics usod to manior the Disiness exposune 1o operational risks and trigger
appropriate responses a5 thresholds are breached,

 Scenario Analysis: This process is vsed to assess and guantify potential high impact, kow lkelihood operational
risk evenis,

Applying the above measurements, the Compary does not have a significant operational risk exposure as of 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

24, Fair value

Fair walue of financial assets and financial labilities

Comparison of the carmyng amounts and falr vakies of fnancial instruments

The camying amounis of current financial assets and curment financial liablities measured at amonised cost
incuding Barrowing fram affifates laidy approximate thedr fair valwes, since they are shortdemm in naturg, Below

tables inctlude comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of non-currant loans and advances to affiliates
and non-current debt issved and other borrowing.

(Mo of JEY) Az of
31 March 2024
Carrying
AFMG LR Falr value
Level 2 Leval 3
Loans and advances 1o affiliates 55,186 56,077 -
Dbt issued and ether Barowing (Mate 19) 92,0979 89,310 -
(Mo of JEY) As of
31 March 2023
Carrying
amount Falr value
Level2 Lovel 3
Loans and advances to affiliates 355,248 360,168
Dbt issued and other bomewing (Mote 159) 120,940 115,085

For financial assats carried at amenised cost which have a maturity of mane than ene year from the reponing date,
fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows using the prevailing rates from the active markets. Credit
risk and senioity of the relevant loans are taken inte consideration in determining the fair value of the loan.
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far tinancial liabilities carmed at amartised o5t having a maturly of more than ona year from the reporing date,
fair value i datermined baged en price quotations at the reporting date. Thase quotations are based on technigues
Tor which all inpuis that have a significant effect on the lair value are observable either direcily or indinecily, as wall
a5 technigues which vse inputs not basad on chsernvable market data.

Falr Value Hlerarchy

All financial instruments measured at fair value, including those measured at fair valee using the fair value option,
have been categorized into a three-lavel hierarchy (fair value hierarchy’) bazed on the tranzparency of valuation
Inputs usad by Momura 10 estimate falr valie, A financlal instrument B classifiad In the Tak value hlararchy basad
on tha lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the financial mstrument. The threa
lewels of the fair value hierarchy are delined as follows, with: Level 1 represanting the most transparent inputs and
Level 3 representing the laast transparant Inputs

Lewvel 1; Coservable valuation inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical financial instruments
traded in active markeds at the measurement date.

Level 2: Valuation inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either dirctly or indirectly
observable for the financil instrumant.

Lovel 3: Unchsarvable valuation inputs which raflect Memura Group's assumptions and specific data,

Far the purposa of fair value disclosures, the Gompany has datemmined classas of assats and liabilties on the basis
«of the nature, characteristice and risks of the asset or Eabilty and the level of the fair valve hierarchy as explained
above.

For assets and Eabilties that are recegnised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
datermings whethar transfers have securrad batwaan Lavals in the hisrarchy by re-assessing categonization at the
beginning of each repenting perod

The availability of valuaten inputs observable in the marke! varies by preduct and can be affected by a variety of
facters, Slonificam fastors include, but ame nol resticted 10 the prevalence of similar products in the maket,
aspacially for customized products, how established the product is In the market, for exampla, whether it s a new
product or is relatively mature, and the relabilty of inlormation provided in the market which would depend, for
axampla, on the frequency and velume of current data, A periad of significant change in the market may reduce
the availability of cbservable data. Under such circumstances, financial instruments may be reclassified into a lower
lowd in tha fair value higrarchy.,

Significant judgments usad in datermining the classification of financial instruments include the nature of the markat
in which the preduct would be traded, the undarlying risks, the type and bguidiy of market data inputs and the
niature of cbsenved transactions for similar instruments,

Whare valuation modals inclede the use of valuation inputs which are less observable or uncbsarvable in the
market, significant managemant judgment is used in estabiishing fair value. The valuations for Level 3 financial
Instruments, therafore, invalve a greater degree of judgment than thess valuations far Level 1 or Level 2 financial
instrurnents.

The following tables presents information about the Company's financial assets and financial liabilties measured at
fair vabug within the fair valug higrarchy on a recurring basis, based on the transpanancy of inputs into the valuation
techniques used by the Company 19 determing such falr values

35
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconclltation of recurring fair value measuremants categerised within Lavel 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The fobowing tables show a reconcikation of all movements in the fair value of inancial instruments categorised within
Lewal 3 batwesan the baginning balancas and the ending balances as of the reporting pericds.

{ Mifiiews of JPY)

Beginning balance

Tatal gains(lesses) in the income
staemeant and statement of
comprahansiva income

Mew |zsues

Setthernents

Translers in

Transters out

Ending balance

Total unrealised gaina{losses)
for the pariad includad in the
income siatement for instruments
held at the end of the reparting
perod

{Milliores of JPY)

Beglnning balance

Tatal gains/(lesses) in the income
stalemeant and statemnent of
comprahansive incames ™

Mew |ssues

Settherments

Transters in

Transfers ouwt

Ending balance

Total vnrealised gains/(losses)
for the period includad in the
incoma siatemant for instruments
hald at the end of the reporting
pariod

31 Mareh 2024

Firsancial labiithes

Dartvative financial Derhvative financial designated an fair valwe
assels liabilities through profit or loss.
11,848 20427 209431
10,528 {2,700) 12.869
- . 158,185
(7650} (639) {143, 443)
232 4,103 56,927
(1,830} {5.972) {143.087)
13218 15219 150,892
9,754 {7.246) {2.70%)
31 March 2023
Financial kabdities
Deerivative financial Derivative financial designaied at tair valwe
agsals liabilities. through profit or logs
30,951 7827 235,1BE
(2,897} (17.5280) 13,088
- - 96,125
(18,072} {5,005) {83,541)
293 24 967 110,355
{627} (18,582) {212 761)
11,848 20427 209431
2,273 £414 {8,151}

“For assels, posifve balances repregont gains, negathve balances represent lasses. For liabilities, positive balances reprosent

losses, negative balances represent gains.

Total gains and lesses on financial dedivatives included in the above table are included under Nef trading
tncome/Toss] in the income statemant. Tatal gains and losses on financlal llabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss included in the above table are included under Nt gain'foss) on financial Kabiities desigrated at fair
value through profit or lesg in the income statemant

Dwring the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, there were no financial assets and financial liabilitbes
recognized at fair value under Level 1, Thus, no transfers cocurned between Level 1 and Lewvel 2.

The Company assumes that alliransters of financial instruments from ane keval to ancther level within the fair valua
hierarchy occur at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant pericd in which the transfer takes placa.
Amounts reported above therelore represent the fair valee of the financial instruments at the beginning of each
quartar within the ralavant period when the transfer was mada,
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Valuation technlques by major class of financial Instrument
Derbvathvas:

The Company has only OTC derivatives, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, which are valeed wsing
inteanal medels using marked trangactions and ather marke! evidenca whanaver passibla, incleding markel-based
Inputs 1o modals, model calibration to maket claaring transactions, broker or dealer quotations, or allemative
pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Valuation technigues include simple discounted
oxpected cazh flow techniques, Black-Scholes and Monta Carlo simulations. OTC derivatives, including bifurcated
embadded derfvatives, are classiflod within Leval 2 of the falf vakie hierarchy when all of the significant inputs can
be corroborated to market evidence.

Dervatives that are valied using models with significam uncbservable inputs such as corralation. lang-dated
welatility, or other uncbsarvable inpuis are classified within Level 3. Examples of dervatives classified as Level 3
by the Company incude exctic interest rale dervatives, exotic lorelgn exchange derivatives, exotic equity
derivalives, exotic darivatives including a comidnation of interest rate, foreign exchange and equity risks and certain
other transactions including long-dated or exalic credit derivatives.

Valuation techniques may rély on paramaters which are not cbsarvable in the markel due 1o an absence of
equivalent, current, market transactions or observable market data. These valuation techniques are based on
assumptions. As a result, the fair value calculated using these valuation techniques will change if the undarlying
assumpilons change.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, a total of JPY 222 millon of financial assets (31 March 2023; JFY 293 million)
and a total of JPY 4,103 millien of financial liabiliies (31 March 2023: JPY 24,0967 millon) were transierred into
Level 3. On the financial assets side the transterred amount comprised primarily JPY 161 million of equity
derivatives (31 March 2023: comprised primarily JPY 239 million of interest rate dervatives) which were transfarred
inte Lavel 3 bacauss eartain volatilties and corralations becama uncbservable or the signilicance of unobsanable
parameters increased. On the financlal llabilikes side the transferred amounts comprised primanly JPY 3,234
milion of equity derivatives (31 March 2023: comprised primarily JPY 23,834 million of equity derivatives) which
ware iranslamed o Lavel 3 bacause cartain volatilities and comelations became unobsevable orthe slundlcanca
of unobsarvable parameters increased.

Ferr the year ended 31 March 2024, atotal o JPY 1,830 millien of financal assets (31 March 2023 JPY 627 million)
and a total of JPY 5972 milllon of financial lHakdlties (31 March 2022 JPY 18,582 million) were transfermed ol of
Level 3. On the financial asseis side the translerred amount comprisad primarily JEY 1,100 millien of equity
darivatives (31 March 2023; comprised primarily JPY 495 million of foreign exchange related darvathves) which
ware transhmad ot of Lavel 3 because cenain volatiities became cbservable or the signflicance of unobservable
paramalers decreased. On the financial liabilties side the transferred amounts comprisad primarily JPY 5,107
milion of equity derivatives (31 March 2023 comprised primarily of JEY 17,038 million of equity derivatives) which
ware translomed out of Level 2 because cenain volatities and cormelations became cbservable or the significance
of unobsavable paameters decreased.

Medium-torm ngtas;
The Comparty Esues madium-amn notes which containg embodded foatures 1hat alter the return 1o the investar lrom
simply racaiving a fed or floating rate of imerest 1o a return that degends upon some other varlablas, such as an aquity

‘or equity index, commadity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating of a third party or a more compliax imterest mte
(i@, an embedded darvative)

The fairvalue of such madium tarm notes ks dedemined using a quoted market price in an active market for the idantical
liakility i awvailable, and where not available, using a mixture of valuation technigues that use the quoted price of the
identical liability when traded a5 an assot, quoted prcos for similar labilties, similar Bablithes whan traded as an 25501,
ar an internal madal which combines discounted cash flow ("DCFT) valvation techniques and cption pricing models,
depending on the nature of the embedded features within the medium term note. The significant valuation inputs used
1o estimate the lair value of the debt instumant companent include yield curves, prepayment rates, defaul of
probabilies and loss saveritios.

Valuation processes

The Company iz fully imegrated into Nomura Greup's governance framework which mandates determination or
vabidatlon of a fair value measurerment by control ard suppert functions independent of the businesses assuming
the risk of the financial instrument in order 10 ensure the appropriatenass of any fair valee measurement of a
fimancial instrument used within these firancial statements including those classified as Level 3 within the fair value
higrarchy,

The functions within Momura Group for edther defining. implementing ©or maintaining valuation policies and
procedures an as follows:

38
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

«  The Valuation Modal Validation G reup within Nomura's Risk Managemant Departmant réviews pricing models
and assesses model appropriatenass and consistancy indapendently of the frant oMlice. The modal reviews
consider a number of factors about a model's suitability for valuation and sensitivity of a particular product.
Valuation models are calibrated to the market on a periodic basis by comparisan to obsenvable market pricing,
comparisen with akemative models and analysis of risk profiles

+  The Accounting Policy Group within Nomura's Finance Department defines the Group's accounting palicies
and procedures, including those associaled with determination of fair valse. This group repons to the Global
Head of Aceounting Palisy and ulimataly te the CFO of Nemura Group,

Quantitative infermation regarding significant uncbservable inputs and assumptions

The folkwing tabls presarts imormation about the signiicant uncbsarvabls inputs and assumptions used for
fimancial instrumants classified as Level 3. These financial instruments also typically include oboensable valeation
Inputs (Le. Level 2 valuxtion inpuis) which are nat Included in the 1able.

The folowing table shows valuation techniques and inpuls used in the fai value measuremants of Lewel 3 financial
assats and financiyl liabiities:

{ Millors of JPY) 31 March 2024
Fair valug
Valuation  Signilicant unobservable Range of
Assets  Llablities  technigue(s) Inputs valuatien Inputs’
Foreign exchangs 651 433 DCF/Oplion Fx Vaolatilities|3a) 11.83-12 56%
rolated dorvathes Medal
Interest rate 10,873 13,026  DCF/Option Interast rates 3.36-3.88%
dprivativis Modal FX Volatilities(35) 10,3213 56%
IR Vilall thes b 37.85-90.120p
Corralations 0,12-0.88
(=105 1.0
Equity derivatives 1,382 1,564  DCFiOption Dividend yield 0,00-2 14%
Modal EC Volatilities(%s) 16,8863 0%
Cormalations -0.63-0.891
{1010 1.0)
Credit derivatives 32 193 DGF Gredn Spreads(®) 026 -1.40%
Recovery Rate(%:) 35-35%
Financial liabilites - 150,892 DCFiOption  Interest Rate Dervatives
dasignated al fair Modal Intarest rales 3.385-3 36%
walue through FX Volatilities(%:) 10.32-13.25%
prafit or ks IR Volatilities{bp) 3785 -90.18bp
Correlations («1.010 1.0 0.120.93
Equity Derivatives
Drividand yialkdia) 0,00-2, 14%
EC Vialatilities(2s) 16.80 -53.80%
Correlations (-1.0 12 1.0) -0.63-0.81
Credn Darvatives
Cradit Spraads (94) 0,26 -1.40%
Recovery Ratesid) 35-35%
Total 13,218 166,111
38
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{ Miiliors of JPY] 31 March 2023
Falr valug
Valuation  Signlficant uncbservable Range of
Assots  Liabilitles  technique(s) inputs valuation inputs”
Faraign exchange 736 772 DCF/Option FX Volatilities(%) 12.68-12.25%
related derivatives Madal
Irtenast rte ge22 14027 DCF/iOption Intenest rates 0.64-851%
danivalies Maodad FX¥ Volatiltias (%) BAT-14.14%
IR Valailities(bp) AT 58-79 28bp
Corralations 0,250,098
1.0 1.0)
Equity dorivatives 1,145 5445  DOF/Option Cividand yield 0.00-582%
Madal EQ Volatilitiesi®) 16.02-59.30%.
Correlations -0.80-0.85
{=1.0121.0)
Cradit darvatives 345 178 DCF Credit Spreads(3a) 0.21 -1.4%
Recovary Fata() A5-355
Finarcial lisbilites - 200431 DCF/Oplien  Interest Rate Dervaiives
dasignated at fair Midal Interest rates 064-851%
walue through FX Volatilities (%) BAT-138T%
profit or loss IR Valatilitiesibp) 47 58 .70, 280D
Corralations (-1.0101.0) 0. 25088
Equity Derivatives
Dividand yhaldie) 0.00-582%
EQ Volatilithes (%) 16,02 -59.035¢
Corralations (1.0 10 1.0) 0.80-0,95
Credit Derivatives
Crpdit Spraads (%) 0,21 -1,4%
_ Recowery Ratasi¥a) 35-35%
Total 11,848 229,858
* ange & p bod i o ages, coslliclents and represonts |he highost and beosl leel Epdscanl o bssrvable vabzation gl
il 1r i that Ty o T 1 A ek ag i Wi rran o Fl by il L] o andbctivity in
he v ahation inget s i nypecally just & - ool nb ches ol i i | irreuments th sheirs.

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Givan thai the valuation of Level 3 linancial instrurnents fluctuate in responze te a variety of factors, incleding, but
net limited to genaral market santiment, credit, Imenast rate, farsign exchange and corralation sk, current values
may continee o decreasa if conditions detenomte futher. Gomversely, should conditions improve; an increase in
the value of the Level 3 portiolio would be expected. Howewver, management doas not anticipate a signilicant imgact
in the et pesitien of Level 2 financial instrumants,

As the Company enters inte derivative transactions to hedge its exposures in madium term netes, the increase or
docreaz in tho valse of the Lovel 3 pontfelis will net significanly impact itg profits and lesses. Hadging dervative
instruments offset the positions adsing from the darivatives which ane embeddad in the debt instruments and limit
the sansitivity of fair value to changes in uncbzenvable inguts related to these financial instrumants.

For sach class of Branclal mestument descibad (n the above tables, chamges In each of the signilicant
unobsamnvable inputs and assumptions vsad by the Company will impact the fair value measurement of the financial
instrument. The sansitvity of these Level 3 tair value measurements 1o changes in unobsarvable inputs and
interralationships batweean thase inputs are described balow:

Derivativies - Whare the Company is kng the underlying risk of a derivative, significant increases (decreases) in
the underlying of the derivative, such as inlerest rates or credit spreads in isolation or significant decreases
{increaszes) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair valee measureament Where the
Company is short the underlying risk of a derivative, the impact of these changes weuld have a corverse effect on
the fair value measuremeants reported by the Comgany.
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘Whare the Company i long optionality. recovery rates or comelation, significant increases (decreases) involatinies,
recovary rates or comalation will genarally resull in a sigrificantly higher (lewer) fair value measurement Whare
the Compary ks short opticnalty, recovery rafes or comelation, the impact of thesa changes would have a corverse
effect on the fair value measurements.

Financial Nabiliies dezignated af fair value through profit or iess — When financial Rabities designated af fair valug
threugh prefii or loss contaln embedded features, embedded features alter the returm 1o the Investor from smgly
recaiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a retum that depends upon some other varables, such as an eguity
or aquity index, commadity price, foreign exchange rate, cradit rating of a third party or a more comphax inarast
rate.

Given that the financial denvatives are held for risk managemeant punpeses 1o offsel movermeant from such financial
libalitios. cheesignatesd at fair valua threugh proffl or loss, sensitivly of the tair value of the financial labilites designated
at fair value through profit or loss 1o changes in unobsarvable inputs are expected to be in the cpposite direction of
those of the darivatives:,

There is. no pradictable interralaticnship between significant uncbsenvable inputs for Level 3 financial instruments.

Given the Company I5 expesed 1o limited market risk, the sensitvity of the profit or less and egquity 10 unobservable
inputs is negligible. Regarding the statement of financial position, when reasonably possible altlemative
uncbsanable inputs are used, the impact on fair vake of Level 3 instrumants is not significam compared o the
total assets of the entity.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and ksses ganerated from the use of valuation 1achniqueas with signilicant unclbservable parametens are delarmed
owar the life of the contract untl parameters become cbservable or whan the instument is derecognsed, Changes in
fair value after inception are rcognised in the income statement. The total fair value atiibutable to these financial
Instrumants that Is yet to be recogrised In the ncome staternent as of the reporing date is JPY 152 milllen galn (31
March 2023: JPY 172 milion gain). The following table shows a reconcillation of movements in the day 1 gains and
losses batween the baginning balances and the ending balances.

(Milfons of JPY) 31 March 2024 21 March 2023

Beginning balance gain 172 193
Mew fransactions - -
Amounts recognised in profit or loss during the year {201 {21)
Ending balance gain IS& 172

a1
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25, Offsetting of financial assets and financlal llabilities

The following table provides a summary of financlal assets and linancial liabililes subject to the Master Metiing
Agreaments and similar agreemants.

(Mitions of JBY) 21 Marsh 2024
Related amounts not set off in
the statement of financlal

position
Gross
amounts  Amounis
Gross amounts of  offset in  presented
racagnisad tha In tha
financial balance balance Financial Cash Het

assetsllabllites™  shoot shoat instrumamts®  collateral™ Amount
Darivative
financial assats 155,764 - 155,764 (54,151} (82,118) 19,425
Leans and
advances 1o
affiliates 24,975 - 394 975 {295} - 394 EBD
Total financial
[ETTE] 550,739 - 550,738 (54,448} {82,118) 414,175
Derivatbve
financial 142,395 - 142 385 (54, 446) {87 .948) =
liabiltios
Total financial
liabilitios 142,395 - 142,385 (54,448} (87,949} -
[Adians of JBY) 31 March 2023

Related amounts not set off In
the statement of financial
position
Gross
amounts  Amouns
Gross amoums of  offset In  presented
recagnisad tha in the
financial balance balance Financial Cash Het

assetsdlablinies™  sheet sheet Instruments®  collawral™® Amount
Darivative
financial assats 88,144 - 98,144 (98,144} - -
Leans and
advances 1o
alfiliates 66,865 - 356 BES {278} - 366,588
Total financlal
assels 465,009 - 465,000 (93 4E3) - 366,586
Diarivative
financial 204,863 . 204 863 (98.423) {106,440) .
liabilities
Total financlal
liabilithes 204,863 - 204 863 (98,423 (106440} -

1} The bifurcated ermbedded deiivatives ame eecludied a5 thay ane not in Scope of master netting and similar agréemants,

2} Those regresent amounts which are not pemitied 1o be offset on the face of the balance sheat bul which provide the
Company with he right of oftsat in the evenlof countesparty default. insolvency oo bankrupicy.

3} The cash collaleral received against the posithve mark to marked valses of derivalives and the cash collaberal pledged
towvaeds the negative mark 1o market valses of derivatves are reported under Other liahdifias and Other as5e0s respactively.

The Company anered inte |SDA Master Agreements with all derdvalbee counterpanies which grant the Company
the night 10 591 off in the evant of counterparty default, insalvency or bankruptcy. The Gampany alse entered inlo
On Balanca Sheet and Off Balance Sheet Master Metting Agreements with one of the counterparties which grant
the Company the right to st off in the event of counterparty defaul, irsohency or bankrupicy. These arangements

42
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reduce credit risk exposung relathie 1o what the credit expasure would be i the same counamparty wera labke lor
their gross exposures on the same undarlying conlracis,

Usually, netting arrangemeants are constitluted by a master netting agreement which specifies the ganeral terms of
the agreement batween the counterparties, incleding information on the basis of the netting calculation, types of
coliatoral, the definition of dafaull and other termination ovents, the caleulation of damages (on defaull) and
documentation required. The Master Netting Agreemeant contains the terms and conditions by which all (or a5 many
as possible) relevant transactions between the counterparies are governed. Multiple individual transactions are
subsumed under thiz general maszier matting agreement, forming a single legal cortract undar which the
counterpaies conduct thelr relevant mutual business. |n additien to the mAlgation of credit isk, placing Individual
trarsactions under a single master natting agreement that providas for netting of transactions in scope also helps
to mitigate sattement risks associated with transacting in multiple jurisdictions or across multiple contracts.

26, Caplal management pollcy

The objective of the Company's capital managemant policy is o ensure that the Company has an appropriate leval
of capital, being issued capRal and issued medium term notes and borrowing from affiliates. The Company reviews
the appropriate level of capital - the datermination of the level of appropriate capital will take Into conslderation the
fimancing meeds and liquidity position of Nomura Group.

Mo changes were made inthe objectives, polickes or processes for managing caphal during the year.

{ Miiliors of JRY] As af
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Issuad and paid-up capital 8,366 7433
Share premiem 1.321 1321
Cumancy translation resanve 36 BES
Total issved caphal 8723 3723
Dbt issued and ofher borrawing 99,870 122,150
= Man-gurrant 92978 120,940
- Gurrent 6,900 1.218
Financial Eabilties designated at fair value threugh profit or loss 801,318 913,941
= Mon-curmant 522,730 552,001
- Current 278 586 351,940
Borrowing from affikates 1,335,508 a71.085
= Mon-currant . -
- Cuwrrent 1,336 500 871,085
Total Bsved capial, medium termn notes and bormawing from affillates 2247 427 1,916.908

Z7. Relaed parties

Same as disclosed in elsewhen of these financial statements, the Compary had the folowing material fransactions
with related parties during the pariod.

a. Transactions with the parent

i The Company enterad into loan agreements with MHI and eamed interest income of JFY 8,855 millien for
this yoar andod 31 March 2024 (31 March 2083 JPY B 058 million) (Rafer to Moto 3). Az of 31 March
2024, the total outstanding loan1o NHI amowsmed to JPY 1,465,600 milbon (31 March 2023 JPY 1,138,200
millian), The cutstanding balance is ursecured Tha Company has JPY 464,300 million unsettied lean
commitrients to NHI a5 of 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: JPY 232,700 milion). JPY & millken Engalrment
loss has been recognized for the year ended 31 March 2024 on the leans and unsatiled loan commitments
to NHI (31 March 2023 JPY 29 million gain), As of 31 March 2024, accrued interest income of JPY
1,016 milllon from NHI s reported undar Otfer curment asseds | 31 March 2023: JPY 1,048 million).

i The Company enterad into a dealer agreament with NHI, as one of the geararors of the Company notes,
wharely the Compary has agreod 1o pay a fes (Refer 10 Note 4) bazed on the average outitanding
amount of the notas during the ralevant calkeulation parod. JPY 514 millien guaranies faes ware
under Fas and commission axpense for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: JPY 658 milion).
As of 31 March 2024, the guaranies fee payable o NHI is JPY 514 million {31 March 2023: JPY &58
rillian).

lil. In accordance with the transfer pricing related agreement (Refer to Nate 2}, JPY 3743 millon gain
was reported under Other apsrating gain{less) as of 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: JPY 203 milon

&3
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gain). JPY 3,743 million was accrued undsr Ofher asses as of 31 March 2024, (31 March 2023 JPY
203 million).

iv. The Company incurred sarvice fee of JPY 54 milion for MHI information technolegy infrastructure
support and other services for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 JPY &2 million). This
oxpans iz ropored under Gangra! and adminisirative exponses in the income statemant Az of 31
March 2024, the service fee payable 1o NHI i JPY 54 millien (31 March 2023 JPY 21 million).

b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As of 31 March 2024, the Company had two Managing Directors who were saconded from Nomura Group.
Mo mmunaration to the managing directors was chargaable 1o the Company for the years ended 21 March
2024 and 31 March 2023,

¢. Transactions with other related parties

i. The Company enterad into loan agreaments with other related parties and samed Imeras income of JPY
356,647 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 JPY 21,821 milion) (Refer to Mote 3).
Az of 31 March 2024, total outztanding loan to other related parties amountad to JP'Y 806,231 milion (31
March 2023: JPY 790,230 millan). All sutstanding balances am unsacured. The Company has JPY
1,579,043 milion ursettled loan commitmants te other related parties as of 31 March 2024 (31 March
2023 JPY 683,517 million). JFY 58 million impaimment loss has bean recognized for the year ended 31
March 2024 on the lans and unsattied commitments 1o other related parties (31 March 2023 JPY 144
million less). As of 31 March 2024, accrued interest income of JPY 2,929 million from othar related
parties is reported under Other current assets (31 March 2023 JPY 2,106 million).

The Compary entared info borrowing agreements with ather related parties and incumad inanest axpanss
(Reder to Mote 3). As of 31 March 2024, inerest expense from such agreements amounted to JPY 70,834
million (31 March 2023 JPY 35287 milion), As of 31 March 2024, accrued interest expanse of JPY
5,475 milllon 1o othar related parties is raparted undar Other current Dabltres (31 March 2023 JPY
8,563 million}.

Bi. Tho Company ortered into dervative transactions with other related pamies under [SDA Master
Agreamants. As of 31 March 2024, darhative financlal assets and dartvative financlal labilties with ather
related parfes amounted to JPY 155,764 millon and JPY 142,395 millon, respectively (31 March 2023:
dervative financial assets - JFY 98,144 milkon and derivative financial Babiliies - JPY 204,863 million),

. As of 31 March 2024, 1otal outstanding balanca of dabt issued by the Company held within Nemura Group
for liquidity or market making puposes amountad to JPY 26,046 million (31 March 2023; JPY 21,649
millian) of which JPY 100 milkan clessified under Dbl issued and other borowing (31 March 2023 JFY
266 milion) and JPY 25 848 milion under Financial Kabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss
(31 March 2033 JPY 21,3583 milion)

¥. The Company enterad into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties in Momura Group, as
guaraniors of the Company notes, whareby it has agreed to pay a fee (Refer to MNote 4) based on the
average cutstanding amount of the notes durng the milevant calculation panad. JPY 1 milllon guaanies
fees ware charged to Fee and commission expense for the year ended 31 March 2024 {31 March 2023:
JEY 2 milion). As of 31 March 2024, the guarantes fee payable of JFY 1 milion is reported undar Othar
currery ¥abitigs (31 March 2023: JPY 2 millon),

Vi, For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company incurmed service fees amourting %o JPY 108 milllen to
other related parties for provision of operational support which is reported under General and
adminislrative experses i the income statement (31 March 2023: JPY BT millian). As of 31 March 2024,
the service fee payable of JPY 80 million to other related parties is reported undar Other currend
liabiithes (31 March 2023 JPY 87 million).

wil.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company incurmed sanvics revenus amaunting ta JPY 108 million
from other related parties for operational support which is reported undar Other operating gain/{Ioss) in the
income statemant (31 March 2023 JPY 96 milion). As of 31 March 2024, the service revenus receivable
o JPY 108 million to cther related partles |5 reparted under Other currernt assets. (31 March 2023:
JPY 86 million).

viil. The Campany placesreceives cash collateral tofrom other retated paries for dorfative trarsactons and
incumad inerest The Company earned interest income amounting fo JFY 14 millian from the cash
collateral for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 JPY 1 million). The Company incurred
interest exparses amounting 1o .JPY 31 milion from the cash collateral for the yaar ended 31 March 2024
(31 March 2033 JPY 49 milion).

i
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2B, Evens after the reporting perlod

Az of the date of this report. there have been no evenis subsequent 1o the year ended 31 March 2024 which
requires adjustments of, or disclosures in, these finandal statements or notes thereta.

29, Appropration of result - Manage ment propasal

The managarmant proposes 1o add the total gain for the year ended 31 March 2024 of JPY 707 milkon 1o the retained
sarmings. This proposal has Been rallacted in the inancial statemants.

12 July 2024
Mamaging Directors

Kaentars Kubota Kanichire Azano

OTHER INFORMATION

Indepandent awditor's repornt

The report of the indegondant audiors, EY Ascountants BV,

Appropriation of result - Provisien in the Company’s anticles of association

In accordance with Adicle 20 of the Compary's articles of association, the net result shall be free at the disposal of the
General Meating

45
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HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x  (HSI
(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T): ©)
HSILI(T-1): m
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1) x
(TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1)  x Stamp Duty } ]

HSISI(T): m
HSISI(T-1): m
K:1
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
TRHSI(T):
TRHSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

200
L(T) = L(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (S(T)/S(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

L(T): m 200

L(T-1) : m 200
K: 2

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

S(M): 200

S(T-1): 200

200
I(T) = I(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (F()/F(T-1) - 1) + (1 - K x M) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

1(M): m 200

1(T-1) : m 200
K: -1

M:

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
24,080.11 21,620.88 23,103.58 14,274.76 10,441.55
16,665.33 11,776.79 11,890.75 4,536.61 4,913.83
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
6,332.69 6,158.86 5,415.70 5,247.46 5,159.62 5,324.30
5,478.72 5,418.87 4,913.83 4,142.26 4,429.16 4,771.89
)
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
5,524.01 6,056.80 5,047.12 7,011.76 6,058.25
4,563.88 4,518.82 3,935.67 4,575.96 4,433.13
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
5,769.19 5,767.12 6,058.25 6,577.82 6,340.03 6,095.15
5,368.78 5,417.28 5,759.64 5,854.60 5,865.39 5,740.47
)
200
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
264.33 418.96 525.15 416.18 301.85
194.78 116.78 371.85 201.94 209.78
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
258.80 270.93 301.85 306.01 303.64 325.03
222.53 228.55 261.53 249.49 274.41 295.21
)
200
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
911.02 1,121.14 531.65 686.14 661.72
765.93 523.75 454.61 497.39 542.05
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
642.06 633.86 592.44 600.56 574.89 551.60
596.74 580.44 542.05 540.66 544 .42 523.92
)
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JPX
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
21,413.13 36,165.67 33,693.02 47,094.97 67,558.53
15,228.30 19,075.25 25,256.59 31,509.46 42,570.49
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
64,656.28 65,298.12 67,558.53 65,105.11 67,413.39 83,349.03
53,121.17 62,402.75 59,679.58 61,595.74 64,466.47 68,120.93
()
JPX
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
5,865.28 5,112.78 4,247.21 3,735.99 3,132.36
4,888.43 3,628.89 3,626.40 3,030.01 2,450.03
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
2,772.51 2,551.03 2,603.03 2,560.15 2,500.40 2,431.75
2,507.67 2,492.85 2,450.03 2,488.58 2,444.77 2,189.89
)
JPX
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2,708.95 2,336.99 1,307.79 3,247.08 3,369.21
1,432.64 149.37 395.31 1,168.96 1,433.19
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
3,369.21 3,055.45 2,716.43 2,851.95 2,905.75 3,271.74
2,705.04 2,623.71 2,181.38 2,273.07 2,531.34 2,718.33
()
JPX
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
5,578.41 7,784.36 3,360.20 1,648.11 1,058.27
4,009.02 3,287.23 1,643.32 821.09 639.46
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
717.71 719.18 780.08 757.48 713.14 684.62
639.46 669.91 704.02 673.29 663.96 622.56
)
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2,557.92 2,704.76 3,473.29 3,530.90 2,879.66
1,707.93 967.14 2,380.04 1,981.78 2,194.65
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
2,424.96 2,657.84 2,879.66 2,972.21 3,050.71 3,123.56
2,194.65 2,306.21 2,667.62 2,793.11 2,924.10 2,954.08
()
10
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
341.05 386.32 218.66 216.91 195.40
265.96 214.63 173.99 172.49 169.39
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
195.40 190.53 176.20 171.87 167.66 166.31
186.11 176.61 169.39 166.48 163.86 161.48
()
11 250
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
967.92 1,365.49 1,320.73 976.74 864.77
824.20 557.86 948.28 615.35 632.29
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
717.03 723.26 713.40 718.85 779.71 775.76
632.29 642.06 662.01 685.90 702.40 721.48
)
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12 STOXX 50
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
5,876.87 5,749.65 6,189.78 7,576.03 8,052.60
5,080.21 3,517.58 5,168.56 6,118.92 6,835.19
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
7,992.16 7,958.97 7,797.83 7,842.16 8,191.58 8,309.69
7,636.54 7,708.28 7,479.98 7,679.37 7,694.01 7,905.14
)
13 S&P500 ( )
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
597.95 645.54 804.44 808.33 814.44
458.25 388.46 630.89 661.05 707.72
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
744.92 766.48 807.55 811.17 823.31 861.65
707.72 720.56 769.46 791.79 797.63 822.50
)
14 S&P REIT  (
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
721.44 762.78 741.64 749.48 706.39
573.28 476.26 668.09 585.80 573.26
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
620.01 637.38 682.94 682.94 654.07 636.23
573.26 584.38 631.19 640.03 630.44 614.85
)
15 Nifty50 Q@ ( )
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
5,440.90 6,069.20 10,131.75 9,802.55 11,941.95
4,172.95 1,933.80 5,744.50 6,602.50 7,656.55
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
10,052.20 | 10,271.90 | 11,941.95 | 12,247.65| 12,271.55| 12,541.35
9,076.45 9,192.15 | 10,407.45 | 11,288.00 | 11,639.65| 11,767.20
()
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16 Nifty50 ( )
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
381.20 519.00 279.90 246.30 228.15
334.05 272.85 205.95 202.45 183.80
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
210.35 209.05 196.70 189.05 186.15 185.30
199.95 198.00 183.80 181.65 181.25 179.40
)
17 70
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
44,874.06 4434651 49,647.93 55,066.87 77,870.80
36,732.76 30,206.25 38,674.20 45,283.17 53,233.67
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
75,800.91 | 77,022.18 | 77,425.87 | 83,610.93 | 85,787.44 | 91,980.98
70,949.25 | 73,292.38 | 73,704.10 | 77,601.11 | 81,897.74 | 85,437.26
)
18 S&P/IPX
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
281.344 278.637 322.778 355.329 496.938
225.218 194.636 261.267 292.716 344.999
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
481.240 490.036 494.506 520.264 537.296 571.651
454617 467.337 474.847 494.940 515.141 537.358
)
19 REIT
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
5,471.260 5,536.668 5,700.644 5,564.628 5,670.667
4,033.305 2,884.009 4,482.509 4,853.520 4,959.712
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
5,522.580 | 5,576.482 | 5,527.664 | 5,635.657 | 5,516.623 | 5,677.349
5,379.729 | 5,414.855 | 5,361.711| 5,468.360 | 5,257.213| 5,200.898
)
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20 Al 70
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
34,441.74 34,553.13 41,869.65 43,087.00 55,227.12
29,208.32 23,397.85 33,320.78 35,806.38 39,444.72
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
52,750.73 53,434.01 53,018.23 57,129.53 59,939.14 63,721.53
49,717.47 51,516.48 51,581.39 53,182.33 56,203.03 59,325.20
()
21 30
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
19,494.79 23,226.87 29,726.88 31,227.54 40,082.58
15,835.26 12,760.43 23,236.82 25,384.19 29,110.54
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
37,914.20 38,016.71 37,745.74 41,858.95 44,414 .47 48,061.08
35,623.24 36,722.31 35,820.19 37,919.48 41,289.50 43,462.20
)
22 50
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
27,826.69 27,823.84 31,977.30 32,435.88 38,731.14
23,361.87 20,871.32 26,253.31 28,798.51 30,140.86
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
37,510.80 38,711.81 38,731.14 41,166.92 41,231.89 42,568.70
35,770.66 37,259.14 37,442.97 38,495.19 40,486.36 40,895.96
()
23
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
1,684.41 1,670.68 2,065.67 2,027.31 2,538.39
1,345.49 1,083.17 1,611.98 1,690.43 1,894.69
2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024
10 11 12
2,458.00 2,486.12 2,538.39 2,662.65 2,731.96 2,848.99
2,326.84 2,394.36 2,445.10 2,541.41 2,632.25 2,724.07
)
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| ndependent auditor’s report

To: the shareholder and the managing directors of Nomura Europe Finance NV.

Report on the audit of the financial statementsfor the year ended 31 March
2024 included in the annual report

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 of Nomura Europe Finance NV. based in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of Nomura Europe Finance
NV. asat 31 March 2024 and of itsresult and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted in the European Union (EU-IFRSs) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Thefinancia statements comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024
the following statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 the income statement, the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows
the notes comprising material policy information and other explanatory information

Basisfor our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance NV. (the company) in accordance with the “Wet toezicht accountantsorgani saties’
(Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the “Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten” (ViO,
Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants, aregulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in
the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the “Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA, Dutch Code
of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

I nformation in support of our opinion

We designed our audit procedures in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole and in forming our opinion thereon.
The following information in support of our opinion and any findings were addressed in this context, and we do not provide a separate
opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Our understanding of the business

Nomura Europe Finance NV. isawholly owned subsidiary of Nomura Holdings, Inc. (“NHI”) which principal activity isto act asa
financing company for group financing purposes. The company’s objectives are to assist NHI and its subsidiaries (together the
Nomura Group) in such activities such as raising funds from the global debt capital markets and providing for the Nomura Group
internationally. The company a so issued medium-term notes in the form of Japanese Depositary Receipt (JDRS), listed on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange. Contractual due amounts of these notes may link to various indices. For risk management purposes, the company uses
derivative instruments with other entities within Nomura Group to economically hedge the risk arising from the fluctuations of indices.
We paid specific attention in our audit to a number of areas driven by the operations of the company and our risk assessment.

We determined materiality and identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error in order to design audit procedures responsive to those risks and to obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Materiality

Materiality JPY 4,505 million (31 March 2023: JPY 5,180 million)

0.5% of ‘debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated at fair value

Benchmark applied .
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: 0.5%)

We have chosen ‘ debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss as benchmark as we believe the total balance of these
accounts is the most important metric for the users of the financial statements. We
determined materiality consistently with the previous financia year.

Explanation

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the users of the
financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatementsin excess of JPY 225 million, which are identified during the audit, would
be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on qualitative grounds.

Scope of the group audit
Nomura Europe Finance NV. has operationsin both Tokyo (Japan) and Amsterdam (the Netherlands). The financial information of
operations at both locationsis included in the financial statements of the company.

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing, supervising and performing the audit in
order to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the company’s operations to express an
opinion on the financial statements. In this respect we have determined the nature and extent of the audit proceduresto be carried out
for both the Tokyo and Amsterdam operations.

We have:
Performed audit procedures ourselves over operations in the Netherlands
Used the work of acomponent auditor, an EY Global member firm, operating under our coordination and supervision when
auditing the operationsin Japan

We sent instructions to the component auditor for the Tokyo operations, covering the significant areas and the information required to
be reported to us. Based on our risk assessment, we held virtual site visits with our team in Japan. These encompassed some, or all, of
the following activities: reviewing key local working papers and conclusions and obtaining an understanding of key processes. We
interacted regularly with the component team during various stages of the audit, through the use of video or teleconferencing facilities.
We held a collective virtua closing meeting with both Amsterdam and Tokyo management. We reviewed key working papers of the
component auditor using the EY electronic audit file platform, screen sharing or by the provision of copies of work papers direct to the
audit team.

By performing the procedures mentioned above over operations in the Netherlands and Japan, we have been able to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence about the company’s financial information as awhole to provide an opinion on the financial statements.

Teaming and use of specialists

We ensured that the audit teams both at group and at component levels included the appropriate skills and competences which are
needed for the audit of alisted client in the banking industry. We included specialistsin the areas of IT audit and income tax and have
made use of our own experts in the areas of valuations derivatives and other financia instruments designated at fair value.

Our focus on fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations

Our responsibility

Although we are not responsible for preventing fraud or non-compliance and we cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all
laws and regulations, it is our responsibility to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements, taken as awhole, are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Our audit responserelated to fraud risks

We identified and assessed the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements due to fraud. During our audit we obtained
an understanding of the company and its environment and the components of the system of internal control, including the risk
assessment process and the managing directors process for responding to the risks of fraud and monitoring the system of internal
control, aswell as the outcomes. We refer to section “ Objective and policy of risk management” of the Managing directors report and
note 23 “Risk management” to the financial statements for the managing directors risk assessment after consideration of potential
fraud risks.

We evaluated the design and relevant aspects of the system of internal control and in particular the fraud risk assessment, as well asthe
code of conduct and incident registration at the Nomura group level. We evaluated the design and the implementation and, where
considered appropriate, tested the operating effectiveness, of internal controls designed to mitigate fraud risks.

As part of our process of identifying fraud risks, we evaluated fraud risk factors with respect to financial reporting fraud and
misappropriation of assets. We evaluated whether these factors indicate that arisk of material misstatement due to fraud is present.

We incorporated elements of unpredictability in our audit. We a so considered the outcome of our other audit procedures and
evaluated whether any findings were indicative of fraud or non-compliance.

We addressed the risks related to management override of controls, asthisrisk is present in all companies. For these risks we have
performed procedures among other things to evaluate key accounting estimates for management bias that may represent arisk of
material misstatement due to fraud, in particular relating to important judgment areas and significant accounting estimates as disclosed
in Note 2.2 “Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions’ to the financial statements. We have also used data
analysisto identify and address high-risk journal entries and evaluated the business rationale (or the lack thereof) of significant
extraordinary transactions, including those with related parties.

When identifying and assessing fraud risks we presumed that there are risks of fraud in revenue recognition. We evaluated that the net
trading income on derivative financial instruments and the net gain on financia liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
in particular give rise to such risks. We describe the audit procedures responsive to the presumed risks of fraud in revenue recognition
in the description of our audit approach for the key audit matters Valuation of derivative financial instruments and Valuation of
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit and loss.

We considered available information and made enquiries of relevant executives both in Amsterdam and Tokyo, the managing
directors and Nomura group’s internal audit, legal and compliance departments.

The fraud risks we identified, enquiries and other available information did not lead to specific indications for fraud or suspected fraud
potentially materially impacting the view of the financial statements.

Our audit response related to risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations

We performed appropriate audit procedures regarding compliance with the provisions of those laws and regulations that have a direct
effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Furthermore, we assessed factors related to
the risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financia
statements from our general industry experience, through discussions with the managing directors, reading minutes, inspection of
Nomuragroup’s internal audit and compliance reports, and performing substantive tests of details of classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures.

We aso inspected alawyer's letter and correspondence with regulatory authorities and remained alert to any indication of (suspected)
non-compliance throughout the audit. Finally we obtained written representations that all known instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations have been disclosed to us.

Our audit response related to going concern

Asdisclosed in the note 2.1 ‘Basis of accounting’ to the financial statements, the financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. When preparing the financia statements, the managing directors made a specific assessment of the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to continue its operations for the foreseeable future.
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We discussed and evaluated the specific assessment with the managing directors exercising professional judgment and maintaining

professional skepticism. We considered whether the managing directors going concern assessment, based on our knowledge and
understanding obtained through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, contains all relevant events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the financia statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion.

Based on our procedures performed, we did not identify material uncertainties about going concern. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors. The key audit matters are not a comprehensive
reflection of all matters discussed.

In comparison with previous year, the nature of our key audit matters did not change.

The derivatives portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance NV. comprises of non-listed derivatives where the
values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-
market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs. The derivate financia instruments are measured at fair
value through profit and loss (net trading income /(loss) on derivative financia instruments).

Risk ) ) S - ) .
We consider the fair value of derivative financial instruments as disclosed in note 14 and note 24 to the
financial statements as akey audit matter due to the relative size of the related accounts as compared to the
financial position and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with aresulting risk for
incorrect valuation of the derivative financia instruments. Moreover, we presumed risks of fraud in the
recognition of the net trading income on derivative financial instruments.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the company’s accounting
policies relating to the valuation of derivative financia instrumentsin accordance with IFRS 13 ‘ Fair Value
Measurement’ as well as current and emerging industry practices and whether these have been applied
consistently.

\We have obtained an understanding of the derivatives valuation process, evaluated the design and tested

operating effectiveness of internal controls. This includes those controls within the model validation process

and the independent price verification process that address the risk of material misstatement relating to

) management’s assessment of the significant inputs and estimates included in fair value measurement. It also

Our audit approach | . N . »

includes the testing of model performance and suitability controlsin the current market conditions.
Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodologies and tested the most significant valuation inputs by
comparing these inputs to independently sourced market data for market observable inputs and other third
party sources for non-market observable inputs. In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation
adjustments relating to CVA and DVA. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions held
with the support of our own valuation specidists.

Additionally, we evaluated the relevant disclosures for accuracy and compl eteness.

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of derivative financial instrumentsin

Key observations .
accordance with EU-IFRSs.
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Nomura Europe Finance NV. issuesfinancial liabilities which are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2
positions) and non-market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs. The net gain/(loss) on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit and lossis included in the income statement.

Risk We consider the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in
note 20 and note 24 to the financial statements as a key audit matter due to the relative size of the account as
compared to the financial position and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with a
resulting risk for incorrect valuation of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Moreover, we presumed risks of fraud in the recognition of the gain on financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit and loss.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the company’s accounting
policies relating to the valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or lossin
accordance with IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments and IFRS 13 ‘ Fair Value Measurement’ aswell as current
and emerging industry practices and whether these have been applied consistently.

We have obtained an understanding of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
valuation process and evaluated the design and tested operating effectiveness of internal controls. This
includes those controls within the model validation process and the independent price verification process
that address the risk of material misstatement relating to management’ s assessment of the significant inputs
Our audit approach | and estimates included in fair value measurement. It also includes the testing of model performance and
suitability controlsin the current market conditions.

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodol ogies and tested the most significant valuation inputs by
icomparison of these inputs to independently sourced market data for market observable inputs and other third
party sources for non-market observable inputs. In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation

adj ustments relating to own credit risk. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions issued
with the support of our own valuation specialists.

Additionally, we evaluated the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of financial liabilities designated at

Key observations ) . . .
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with EU-IFRSs.
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Asdisclosed in Note 2.3 () of the financial statements, Nomura Europe Finance NV. isrequired to record
an impairment allowance for expected credit losses for the loans and advances to affiliates. The impairment
alowance is based on the expected credit losses associated with the probability of default in the next 12
months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the

Risk allowance is based on the probability of default over the expected life of the instrument.

We consider the valuation of the loans and advances to affiliates as disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the size of the loans and advances to affiliates and given that an
impairment may have a material effect on the company’s result.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the company’s accounting
policies related to recognition of expected credit losses in accordance with of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments.
\We evaluated whether the accounting policies and methods applied for making estimates have been applied
consistently.

\We have verified the valuation of loans and advances to affiliates by obtaining an understanding of the
impairment process and model. We assessed the impai rment methodology and expected credit loss cal culation.
\We verified the criteriafor identifying significant increase in credit risk and tested the accuracy of internal
credit ratings.

\We evaluated the determination of the probability of default including forward-looking information. We
evaluated management’s impact assessment for current and expected market conditions on expected credit
losses. Furthermore, we recalculated the impairment allowance as per 31 March 2024

Our audit approach

Additionally, we evaluated the relevant disclosures for accuracy and compl eteness.

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the impairment allowance for expected credit

Key observations . . .
losses for the loans and advances to affiliates in accordance with EU-IFRSs.

Report on other information included in the annual report

The annual report contains other information in addition to the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the management report and the other
information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of the financia statements
or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material misstatements. By performing these procedures, we
comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures
performed is substantially less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the management report in accordance
with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement

We were engaged by the managing directors as auditor of Nomura Europe Finance NV. We are unable to determine since which
financial year we have operated as the statutory auditor, but we have operated as statutory auditor for at least 19 years.

Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements

Responsibilities of the managing directors for the financial statements

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with EU-
IFRSs and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the managing directors are responsible for such internal control as
the managing directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financia statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the managing directors are responsible for ng the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework mentioned, the managing directors should prepare the
financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless the managing directors either intend to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so. The managing directors should disclose events and circumstances
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilitiesfor the audit of the financial statements
Our objective isto plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not detect all material errors and
fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch
Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. The * Information in support of our opinion’ section above
includes an informative summary of our responsibilities and the work performed as the basis for our opinion.
Our audit further included among others:
Performing audit procedures responsive to the risks identified, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the managing directors
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures
Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

Communication
We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine the key audit matters: those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these mattersin our auditor’ s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public
interest.

Amsterdam, 12 July 2024

EY AccountantsBV.

R. Koekkoek
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